
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CABINET SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Monday, 28th March, 2011 

 
2.30 pm 

 
 

Edenbridge Leisure Centre, Stangrove Park, 
Edenbridge, Kent, TN8 5LU 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

CABINET SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 

Monday, 28th March, 2011, at 2.30 pm Ask for: Peter Sass 
Edenbridge Leisure Centre, Stangrove 
Park, Edenbridge, Kent 

Telephone: 01622 694002 

   
 

Membership  
 
Liberal Democrat (1): Mrs T Dean (Chairman) 

 
Conservative (11): Mr R F Manning, Mr R Brookbank, Mr A R Chell, Mr D A Hirst, 

Mr E E C Hotson, Mr M J Jarvis, Mr R E King, Mrs J P Law, 
Mr R L H Long, TD, Mr J E Scholes  Mr C P Smith 
 

Labour (1) Mr L Christie 
 

Independent (1) Mr R J Lees 
 

Church 
Representatives (3): 

The Reverend N Genders, Dr D Wadman  Mr A Tear 
 

Parent Governor (2): Mr B Critchley  Mr P Myers 
 

 

Refreshments will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting 

Timing of items as shown below is approximate and subject to change. 

County Councillors who are not Members of the Committee but who wish to ask questions 
at the meeting are asked to notify the Chairman of their questions in advance. 

 
Webcasting Notice 

 
Please note:  this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s 
internet site – at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the 
meeting is being filmed. 
 
By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use 
of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.  If you do 
not wish to have your image captured then you should make the Clerk of the meeting 
aware. 

 
 



UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 

 
 
 

 A.  COMMITTEE BUSINESS 

A1 Introduction/Webcasting  

A2 Substitutes  

A3 Declarations of Interests by Members in Items on the Agenda for this Meeting  

 D.  CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS 

D1  Edenbridge Community Centre ( 1 - 96) 

 This item will be considered in four parts: 
 
1. Overview of project and benefits 
2. Implementation timeframe and lessons learned 
3. Long term financial sustainability 
4. Local concerns 
 
Mr P Lake, County Councillor, Sevenoaks South, Mr R Aldous, Capital Strategy 
Manager, Mr K Tilson, Head of Finance for Communities and Mr J White, Capital 
Project Officer have been invited to attend the meeting to answer Members’ 
questions on this item. 
 
The following external witnesses have also been invited to answer Members’ 
questions: Ms Christine Lane, Town Clerk, Edenbridge Town Council; Councillor 
Jill Davison, Edenbridge Town Council and Sevenoaks District Council; Councillor 
John Scholey, Edenbridge Town Council and Sevenoaks District Council; and Ms 
Sally Richards, Regional Development Manager, Orbit Housing Group.  
 

 
 
Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership 
(01622) 694002 
 
Friday, 18 March 2011 
 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report. 
 



By: Peter Sass:  Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership  
 
To:  Cabinet Scrutiny Committee – 28 March 2011 
 
Subject:        Edenbridge Community Centre 
 
 
 

Background 
 

(1) Members would like more information on the project, its benefits, the 
implementation timeframe, the lessons learned, the long term financial 
sustainability and any local concerns. 
 
(2) The records of decision and background information documents are attached 
for Members’ information. 

 
Guests 
 
(1) Mr P Lake, County Councillor, Sevenoaks South, Mr R Aldous, Capital 
Strategy Manager, Mr K Tilson, Head of Finance for Communities and Mr J 
White, Capital Project Officer have been invited to attend the meeting to answer 
Members’ questions on this item. 

 
Options for the Cabinet Scrutiny Committee 
 
Please note that the implementation of the decision(s) has not been delayed 
by this call-in 
 
(1) The Cabinet Scrutiny Committee may: 
 

(a) make no comments 
 
(b) express comments but not require reconsideration of the decision 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Adam Webb  Tel: 01622 694764 

Agenda Item D1

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



06/decisions/glossaries/FormC 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL - RECORD OF DECISION 

 

DECISION TAKEN BY 

Mr Roger Gough 

Cabinet Member for Business Strategy & Support  

   
DECISION NO. 

10/01431 

 

(This is an unrestricted summary of a matter which is exempt under the provisions of  paragraph 3 of Part 1 of schedule 12A of the 

Local Government Act 1972) 

 
 

Subject: 

Sale of 2.23 acres of freehold land comprising part of the former Eden Valley Secondary 

School Site, Edenbridge  

 
 
 

Decision: 

 

N.B  

This is a revised Form C signed by the Cabinet Member Roger Gough on 15 March 2010 

which authorised the sale of the land. 

 
The prise assumed the demolition of the existing school building would be undertaken by KCC prior 
to the sale.  Due to complexities of the site and the presence of large quantities of asbestos in the 
buildings, demolition will now be responsibility of the purchasers and the land sale price will be 
adjusted accordingly.  
 
 
Any Interest Declared when the Decision was Taken 
 
None   
 

Reason(s) for decision, including alternatives considered and any additional information 
 
Seek approval for the sale of freehold land of some 2.23 acres for the development of up to 40 
residential units.  This is linked to the construction by KCC of a community centre on adjacent land 
towards which the sale proceeds will be applied.  The community centre will be procured by 
Communities Directorate and a parallel application for approval will be submitted to Mr. Mike Hill, 
Cabinet Member, Community Services.. 
 

Background Documents: None 
 
 

 
Roger Gough   4 February 2011 

 signed   date 
   
 

FOR LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES USE ONLY 
 
Decision Referred to 

Cabinet Scrutiny 

 Cabinet Scrutiny 

Decision to Refer 

Back for 

Reconsideration 

 Reconsideration Record Sheet Issued  Reconsideration of Decision 

Published 

YES  NO   YES  NO   YES  NO    

 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Decision Number: 10/01431  
 

SALE OF PART OF THE FORMER EDEN VALLEY SCHOOL SITE, FOUR 
ELMS ROAD, EDENBRIDGE TN8 6AD 
 
(This is an unrestricted summary of a matter which is exempt under the 
provisions of  paragraph 3 of Part 1 of schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972) 
 

SUMMARY: 
FOR DECISION 

 

The purpose of this report is to:- 

 
Seek approval for the sale of freehold land of some 2.23 acres for the 
development of up to 40 residential units.  This is linked to the construction by 
KCC of a community centre on adjacent land towards which the sale proceeds 
will be applied.  The community centre will be procured by Communities 
Directorate and a parallel application for approval will be submitted to Mr. 
Mike Hill, Cabinet Member, Community Services.. 
 
 

There are no background documents 

None  

 
Contact Details: 
David Hynard 
Manager Property Development  
01622 221322 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



06/decisions/glossaries/FormC 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL - RECORD OF DECISION 

 

DECISION TAKEN BY 

Mr R Gough 

Cabinet Member for Business Strategy & Support 

Mr M Hill 

Cabinet Member for Customer and Communities  

   
DECISION NO. 

11/01627 

 

Unrestricted Summary of an Exempt Record of Decision 
 

Subject: 

Grant of a long lease at the Edenbridge Baptist Church and outline occupational terms at the 

new Edenbridge Community Centre  
 
 

Decision: 

 
The Cabinet Member for Business Strategy & Support and the Cabinet Member for Customer and 
Communities AGREE to delegate authority to the Director of Property and Infrastructure and the 
Director of Communities to finalise the heads of terms outline in the exempt and authorise them to 
complete on behalf of the County Council all necessary agreements and contracts. 
 
 
Any Interest Declared when the Decision was Taken 
None 
  
 

Reason(s) for decision, including alternatives considered and any additional information 
To authorise the completion of the long lease with the Baptist Church as envisaged in the project 
plan to re-provide space for community based, frontline service by KCC and its partners. 
 
 

Background Documents: None  
 
 
 

 
Roger Gough & Mike Hill   7/3/11 

 signed   date 
   
 

FOR LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES USE ONLY 
 
Decision Referred to 

Cabinet Scrutiny 

 Cabinet Scrutiny 

Decision to Refer 

Back for 

Reconsideration 

 Reconsideration Record Sheet Issued  Reconsideration of Decision 

Published 

YES  NO   YES  NO   YES  NO    

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Communications 

PR & Media

Lisa Whitbread

Sue Sparks CMY

Mike Leppard CMY

Jonathan White

Jane Kendal CMY

Lesley Bowles 

SDC (SDC press 

office)

Fiona Dutton CMY 

with support from 

Suzanna Darling

Edenbridge Town 

Council

EC Design & Build Team

EC Project Team

Toby Jay (Hunters)

Sally Richards (Orbit)    Steve Jones HP    Peter Lacey HP    
John Spence CS    Val hardy CED    Jonathan White

Jonathan White 

David Hynard CED/ Julie Johnson ISG / Lisa Whitbread CED / Mark Cheverton CED / Val Hardy CED / 
Mike Leppard CMY / Jayne Collier-Smith KASS / Strategic Manager Libraries CMY / Jane Kendal CED

Public consultation

Jonathan White

Sally Richards 

(Orbit)

Lesley Bowles SDC

Lisa Whitbread CED

Libraries

Edenbridge Town 

Council

Edenbridge Centre 
Project Governance: Build

Centre decant

John turner CMY

Mike Leppard CMY

Theresa Seal CMY 

(area officer)

Steve Hanks CMY

Sue Bonard CMY

Jonathan White

Mark Cheverton

CED

Leslie Bowles SDC

Jayne Collier-Smith 

KASS (CC only)

IT

Julie Johnson ISG

Jennie Hocken

CMY

Stuart Cockett ISG

Mike Leppard CMY

Jayne Collier-Smith 

KASS

Legal

David Hynard CED

James Piggott CED

Sally Richards Orbit

Mark Cheverton

CED

Peter Riley Mouchel

Jonathan White

Jane Edwards CED

Val Hardy CED

Security

TBC

Tenant and service 

provider consultation

John Spence CS

Henry Lawrence CS

Facility 

management 

model

Mike Leppard CMY

Jayne Collier-Smith 

KASS

Fiona Dutton CMY

Sophie Day CED

Jill Eyre CAB

David Franklin 

Church

Jonathan White

EC Project Management Board

Des Crilley

Kevin Tilson CMY / Jonathan White / Jane Kendal CED /  Lesley Bowles SDC / Carol Infanti KASS / 
David Hynard CED

Service model / 

Partnership model

Jane Kendal

Strategic Manager 

Libraries - CMY

Jill Eyre CAB

Lesley Bowles SDC

Jayne Collier-Smith 

KASS

Theresa Seal CMY 

(area officer)

Finance Monitoring

Val Hardy

Library move

Strategic Manager 

Libraries CMY

Renewable 

technologies

Jonathan White

Mark Reeves

Martyn Riley

P
a
g
e
 1

1



P
a
g
e
 1

2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Edenbridge Centre 
Legal framework

(proposed) Management 

Company

YMCACAB/Gateway

Lease 15 years 

BC 3-5 years

Total area 7.11% 

+ 13.8% TBC

KCC freehold

Church

Lease 15 years 

BC TBC years

Total area 5.4%

Lease 250 years 

1st BC 20 years 

then every year

Total area 10.57%

Lease 15 years 

BC TBC

Total area 89.43%

YS/KASS Library

Lease 15 years 

BC 3-5 years

Total area 20.27%

Community space

Rental space 

Total area 18.65%

Community space

Common space 

Total area 10.29%

Lease 15 years 

BC 3-5 years

Total area 13.84%

P
a
g
e
 1

3



Edenbridge Centre 
Management setup

YMCACAB

12.44%

KCC Head of Property (dispute resolution)

Church

9.4% 18.49%

YS/KASS Library

35.44% 24.2%

Management 

company

0%

KCC or

Management 

company

User’s Liaison Committee

Community Centre

P
a
g
e
 1

4



The Edenbridge Centre 
 
Public consultation feedback forms 
 
 
This feedback form is to ask local people for their views of the current 
revised plans for the former Eden Valley School site to build forty homes and 
a community centre. All responses will be treated confidentially and some of 
the comments you provide maybe submitted as part of the planning 
application. 
 

 
Name…………………………………………………………………………………...  
 
Home postcode……………………………………………………………………….. 
 

 
The site will have an emphasis on family homes and space has also been set 
aside for a nature reserve and play areas for locals to enjoy the natural 
environment. 
 

 
Having seen the boards what do you think of the design of the development?  
………………………………………………………………………………………..... 
………………………………………………………………………………………..... 
………………………………………………………………………………………..... 
………………………………………………………………………………………..... 
………………………………………………………………………………………..... 
 

 
The centre will provide easily accessible community facilities, alongside 
additional healthy living facilities and outdoor activities for all. When designing 
the development we wanted to encourage a mixed community for all age 
groups and incomes.  
 
 
When thinking about community facilities is there anything else you would like 
to see in and around the site? 
………………………………………………………………………………………..... 
………………………………………………………………………………………..... 
………………………………………………………………………………………..... 
………………………………………………………………………………………..... 
 ……………………………………………………………………………………….... 
  

 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Public consultation 0.5 

 

You said: We listened and: 

The current consented 
scheme shows the 
community centre hidden 
at the back of the site. 

We listened and moved the community centre to the north west 
corner of the site (junction between B2026 and B2027) which 
was what tenants and prospective tenants wanted in order to 
ensure maximum use of their services. Moving the centre will 
also improve the quality of life for the new residential 
development, while the landscaping to the front of the 
community centre will help minimise any impact on current 
dwellings. 

Why are you changing 
the layout of the 
community centre? 

The new community centre needed to move away from sport 
provision which is already being provided for by the local 
leisure centre. Instead of competing against each other, the 
two buildings now complement each other. Users also asked 
for changes to be made which led to the eventual re-design. 

Why do we need the 
housing? 

The housing is needed as an enabling development for the 
community centre. The housing numbers will remain the same 
as the previous planning application which was forty. There will 
be a mix of two, three and four bedroom family homes. 

Why are you looking to 
move the CAB and the 
library? 

The CAB are an independent organisation who have faithfully 
served the Edenbridge community for many years. Like all 
grant funded organisations suffering in the current down turn, 
they need to consider their options to ensure they can continue 
to serve your community. Their decision to move or not, will be 
made by them, to benefit you. We have offered to help them 
where we can and giving them space in the centre is a 
potential solution.  
 
In terms of the library, KCC is committed to providing high 
quality services in Edenbridge and we aim to meet the needs of 
the people who live and work in the area. As part of this we 
regularly explore opportunities to partner and co-locate with 
other service providers to improve our offer to local people. 
Some discussions have been taking place to assess the 
potential opportunities of moving the library in Edenbridge 
and if these discussions do result in proposals to develop the 
library service, we will ensure that the local community are 
involved in taking those proposals forward. 

Who have you been 
speaking to about the 
centre and which tenants 
will be in it? 

We are still working on the final tenants for the centre but there 
are a few we can guarantee a place for. These are the Youth 
Service, Evolve, Mencap, Family Action, the Eden Baptist 
Church, Stangrove Area Community Action Group, the 
Respiratory group, Connexions, Astor Senior Citizens, The 
Healthy Lifestyle Group, Edenara and Edenbridge Quilters 
along with a few other occasional users. Those that we are 
currently speaking with about coming in to the centre are the 
CAB, YMCA, Library, West kent housing Association and 
Gateway. In addition to all of these we have also spoken with 
many other potential tenants including the GP surgery, 

Page 17



Dentists, the Police, the Town Council, West Kent College, 
Voluntary Action West Kent, a local nursery and the children 
centre amongst others. The Air Training Corps is also present 
on the site and they will continue to benefit from their current 
facilities. 

What will happen to the 
Library building if you 
decide to move and how 
will this impact on the 
town centre? 

Should the library be modernised and move to the new centre 
we would look to minimise any impact on the Town Centre and 
we believe that given the nature of the building, there will be 
considerable interest in finding an appropriate use for it. 

The community centre 
should be easily 
accessible to all. 

The community centre will have improved access from a new 
informal crossing going in mid way between the railway bridge 
and the Four Elms, Station road junction. There will be new 
pedestrian routes for walkers, cycle racks for bickers, fifty car 
parking spaces for cars and minibuses and the building will be 
fully DDA compliant with additional specialist equipment for 
disabled users. There will be two access points to the 
community centre, one from the car park and the other from 
Station road. 

What will happen to the 
junior football pitches? 

Currently the two football pitches will be put in as they are part 
of a linked planning application. However following discussions  
there are concerns that there is little demand for junior pitches 
in the immediate and surrounding area. There is also concern 
locally at the location of the pitches, including distance to car 
parking facilities, quality of the ground given that it is in a flood 
zone and the possible loss of the managed nature area. 
Subject to ongoing consultations a possible solution maybe 
that a commuted sum should be put aside to ensure that in 
future, when there is demand for further pitches, the moneys 
and fields would be readily available to the local community. 

What will happen to the 
rest of the space? 

The remainder of the site including that covered by the old 
school, will be grassed over and used for the local community 
to enjoy. 

The community centre 
should be 
environmentally friendly. 

The new community centre will have rain water harvesting and 
we are working towards including, photovoltaic, air source heat 
pumps and other eco friendly measures. This will help the 
community by lowering long term running costs to users and 
ensuring we minimise our carbon footprint. 

Is the centre too big for 
Edenbridge? 

The size of the centre was set in collaboration with a number of 
local stakeholders. In moving forward with any such project, 
there is always a degree of flexibility that is built into the system 
and going forward we have been working hard to ensure that 
the right mix of users are in the facility and we strongly believe 
that the revised scheme will meet the needs of the local 
community groups and the charities who will use it. 

Current planning 
application shows that 
the back of community 
centre has poor security. 

The new location is well overlooked and this will minimise the 
chance of any vandalism which in turn will reduce the likelihood 
of flood lights and CCTV needing to be installed. 

 

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



K
itc

he
n

9.
4m

2

ge
ne

ra
l o

ffi
ce

[C
A

B
]

45
.5

m
2

C
en

tr
al

 c
or

rid
or

36
m

2

Lo
bb

y
12

.7
m

2

Le
ct

er
n

S
ea

tin
g

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e

in
di

ca
tiv

e
se

at
in

g 
pl

an
s

sh
ow

n

W
C

3.
2m

2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

tr
a
in

in
g
[Y

M
C

A
]

5
7
m

2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

a
ll

9
1
m

2

C
h
u
rc

h

1
4
4
m

2
 o

/a

[i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

n
d
 s

to
re

]

C
h
u
rc

h

o
ff
ic

e

4
.4

m
2

C
h
u
rc

h

s
to

re

9
.5

m
2

L
ib

ra
ry

 s
p
a
c
e

1
8
3
m

2

E
x
te

rn
a
l

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 p

o
rc

h

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 p

la
c
e
s

1
6
m

2

R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n

1
7
.5

m
2

C
a
fe

 a
re

a

[6
0
m

2
]

L
o
b
b
y

1
2
m

2

E
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

p
a
c
e

1
8
9
m

2

E
x
te

rn
a
l

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 p

o
rc

h

Y
o
u
th

 c
lu

b

1
4
8
m

2

Fol
di
ng

 s
cr

ee
n

Workstations

C
o

u
n

te
r

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

D
is

p
la

y
 s

p
a

c
e

O
ff
ic

e
 5

8
.8

m
2

O
ff
ic

e
 6

[C
A

B
]

1
2
m

2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

s
to

re

9
.3

m
2

O
ff
ic

e
3

[C
A

B
]

7
m

2

O
ff
ic

e
 4

[C
A

B
]

7
m

2

T
oi

le
t l

ob
by

19
m

2

O
ff
ic

e
2

[C
A

B
]

9
.8

m
2

O
ff
ic

e
1

[C
A

B
]

6
.8

m
2

S
e

rv
e

ry

S
lid

in
g

 s
h

u
tt

e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
[Y

M
C

A
]

5
5
m

2

Sliding folding screen

S
lid

in
g

 f
o

ld
in

g
 s

c
re

e
n

O
ff
ic

e

1
8
.3

m
2

R
e

c
e
p
ti
o
n

o
ff
ic

e

1
3
.4

m
2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

s
to

ra
g
e
/f
ix

e
d

e
q
u
ip

e
m

e
n
t

[Y
M

C
A

]

7
.8

m
2

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

o
ff
ic

e
[Y

M
C

A
]

9
.7

m
2

T
an

k

M
 U

 L
 T

 I
 -

  
P

 U
 R

 P
 O

 S
 E

  
 S

 P
 A

 C
 E

 S

L
ib

ra
ry

s
to

re

5
.5

m
2

L
a

d
d

e
r

Lo
ft

ac
ce

ss
1.

9m
2

T
e
a
c
h
in

g
 k

it
c
h
e
n

2
4
m

2

O
ff
ic

e

7
.5

m
2

T
h
e
ra

p
y

1
6
m

2

J
o
in

t 
O

ff
ic

e

1
5
m

2

S
to

re
1
.4

m
2

S
to

re
1
.4

m
2

S
to

re
1
.4

m
2

S
to

re
1
.4

m
2

K
as

s 
S

en
so

ry
 R

oo
m

39
m

2

Servery

Sliding shutter

Servery

Sliding shutter

O
ff
ic

e

7
.5

m
2

S
to

re
1m

2

M
U

L
T

I 
- 

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E

S
P

A
C

E
S

M
U

L
T

I 
- 

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E

S
P

A
C

E
S

O
ff
ic

e

7
.3

m
2

S
to

re

3
.4

m
2

D
is

 w
c

3.
3m

2

w
c

2.
6m

2

w
c

2.
6m

2

B
ab

y 
ch

an
ge

4.
4m

2

D
is

 w
c

3.
3m

2
S

to
re

1m
2

S
to

re

3.
7m

2

N
O

T
E
:

T
H

IS
 D

R
A
W

IN
G

 H
A
S
 B

E
E
N

 P
R
O

D
U

C
E
D

 B
Y
 E

L
E
C
T
R
O

N
IC

 M
E
A
N

S
. 
S
H

O
U

L
D

 T
H

E
 S

C
A
L
E
 M

E
A
S
U

R
E
M

E
N

T
S
 B

E
 T

A
K
E
N

 B
Y
 M

E
A
N

S
 O

T
H

E
R
 T

H
A
N

 E
L
E
C
T
R
O

N
IC

 (
e
.g

. 
F
R
O

M
 A

 P
R
IN

T
E
D

 C
O

P
Y
),

 T
H

E
 F

O
L
L
O

W
IN

G

M
U

S
T
 B

E
 T

A
K
E
N

 I
N

T
O

 C
O

N
S
ID

E
R
A
T
IO

N
 B

E
F
O

R
E
 S

C
A
L
IN

G
 I

S
 U

N
D

E
R
T
A
K
E
N

:

1
. 
E
N

S
U

R
E
 T

H
A
T
 T

H
E
 C

O
P
Y
 H

A
S
 B

E
E
N

 P
R
IN

T
E
D

/P
L
O

T
T
E
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 S

T
A
T
E
D

 S
H

E
E
T
 S

IZ
E
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 P

L
O

T
T
IN

G
 S

C
A
L
E
 S

E
T
 T

O
 A

 C
O

R
R
E
C
T
 R

A
T
IO

.

2
. 
E
N

S
U

R
E
 T

H
A
T
 A

N
 A

D
E
Q

U
A
T
E
 A

L
L
O

W
A
N

C
E
 (

D
E
P
E
N

D
A
N

T
 O

N
 T

H
E
 S

T
A
T
E
D

 S
C
A
L
E
) 

IS
 M

A
D

E
 F

O
R
 T

H
E
 I

N
E
V
IT

A
B
L
E
 D

IS
T
O

R
T
IO

N
S
 I

N
T
R
O

D
U

C
E
D

 B
Y
 P

L
O

T
T
IN

G
/P

R
IN

T
IN

G
 A

N
D

 C
O

P
Y
IN

G
 P

R
O

C
E
S
S
E
S
.

3
. 
M

A
R
K
E
D

 C
R
IT

IC
A
L
 D

IM
E
N

S
IO

N
S
 A

R
E
 T

O
 B

E
 R

E
G

A
R
D

E
D

 A
S
 H

A
V
IN

G
 P

R
E
C
E
D

E
N

C
E
 O

V
E
R
 T

H
E
 S

C
A
L
E
D

 V
A
L
U

E
S
.

S
ca

le

T
it
le

P
ro

je
ct

C
lie

n
t

D
a
te

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
C
h
e
ck

e
d
 B

y
R
e
v
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o
:

ca
lf
o
rd

se
a
d
e
n
 L

L
P
 i
s 

a
 L

im
it
e
d
 L

ia
b
ili

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 &

 W
a
le

s 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

O
C
3
1
5
8
3
8

S
t 

Jo
h
n
's

 H
o
u
se

, 
1
A
 K

n
o
ll 

R
is

e
, 
O

rp
in

g
to

n
, 
K
e
n
t 

B
R
6
 0

JX
T

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
F

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
E

  
  
0
1
6
8
9
 8

8
8
2
2
2
  
  
  
  
 0

1
6
8
9
 8

8
8
2
9
9
  
  
  
  
 o

rp
in

g
to

n
@

ca
lf
o
rd

se
a
d
e
n
.c

o
.u

k

w
w

w
.c

a
lf

o
r
d

s
e

a
d

e
n

.c
o

.u
k

O
R
P
IN

G
T
O

N
W

IN
C
H

E
S
T
E
R

L
O

N
D

O
N

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

C
H

K
D

IN
IT

D
A
T
E

R
E
V

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N

A
1

 S
H

E
E

T

O
rb

it

E
d
e
n
b
ri
d
g
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 -

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

1
/1

0
0
@

A
1

2
6
-0

4
-1

0
h
jl

K
0
9
-0

5
3
4

2
0
4

A
A

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



E
nt

ra
nc

e 
ar

ea
C

om
m

un
ity

 s
to

re
F

ol
di

ng
 p

ar
tit

io
n

P
la

nt
 s

pa
ce

C
om

m
un

ity
 h

al
l/C

hu
rc

h
C

om
m

un
ity

w
or

ks
ho

p

S
er

ve
ry

E
nt

ra
nc

e 
ar

ea
C

en
tr

al
 c

or
rid

or
C

hu
rc

h
A

lta
r

C
or

rid
or

C
ei

lin
g 

vo
id

P
la

nt
 s

pa
ce

W
C

C
om

m
un

ity
of

fic
e

C
om

m
un

ity
 h

al
l

C
or

rid
or

O
ffi

ce
s

C
ei

lin
g 

vo
id

F
ol

di
ng

 p
ar

tit
io

n

N
O

T
E
:

T
H

IS
 D

R
A
W

IN
G

 H
A
S
 B

E
E
N

 P
R
O

D
U

C
E
D

 B
Y
 E

L
E
C
T
R
O

N
IC

 M
E
A
N

S
. 
S
H

O
U

L
D

 T
H

E
 S

C
A
L
E
 M

E
A
S
U

R
E
M

E
N

T
S
 B

E
 T

A
K
E
N

 B
Y
 M

E
A
N

S
 O

T
H

E
R
 T

H
A
N

 E
L
E
C
T
R
O

N
IC

 (
e
.g

. 
F
R
O

M
 A

 P
R
IN

T
E
D

 C
O

P
Y
),

 T
H

E
 F

O
L
L
O

W
IN

G

M
U

S
T
 B

E
 T

A
K
E
N

 I
N

T
O

 C
O

N
S
ID

E
R
A
T
IO

N
 B

E
F
O

R
E
 S

C
A
L
IN

G
 I

S
 U

N
D

E
R
T
A
K
E
N

:

1
. 
E
N

S
U

R
E
 T

H
A
T
 T

H
E
 C

O
P
Y
 H

A
S
 B

E
E
N

 P
R
IN

T
E
D

/P
L
O

T
T
E
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 S

T
A
T
E
D

 S
H

E
E
T
 S

IZ
E
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 P

L
O

T
T
IN

G
 S

C
A
L
E
 S

E
T
 T

O
 A

 C
O

R
R
E
C
T
 R

A
T
IO

.

2
. 
E
N

S
U

R
E
 T

H
A
T
 A

N
 A

D
E
Q

U
A
T
E
 A

L
L
O

W
A
N

C
E
 (

D
E
P
E
N

D
A
N

T
 O

N
 T

H
E
 S

T
A
T
E
D

 S
C
A
L
E
) 

IS
 M

A
D

E
 F

O
R
 T

H
E
 I

N
E
V
IT

A
B
L
E
 D

IS
T
O

R
T
IO

N
S
 I

N
T
R
O

D
U

C
E
D

 B
Y
 P

L
O

T
T
IN

G
/P

R
IN

T
IN

G
 A

N
D

 C
O

P
Y
IN

G
 P

R
O

C
E
S
S
E
S
.

3
. 
M

A
R
K
E
D

 C
R
IT

IC
A
L
 D

IM
E
N

S
IO

N
S
 A

R
E
 T

O
 B

E
 R

E
G

A
R
D

E
D

 A
S
 H

A
V
IN

G
 P

R
E
C
E
D

E
N

C
E
 O

V
E
R
 T

H
E
 S

C
A
L
E
D

 V
A
L
U

E
S
.

S
ca

le

T
it
le

P
ro

je
ct

C
lie

n
t

D
a
te

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
C
h
e
ck

e
d
 B

y
R
e
v
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o
:

ca
lf
o
rd

se
a
d
e
n
 L

L
P
 i
s 

a
 L

im
it
e
d
 L

ia
b
ili

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 &

 W
a
le

s 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

O
C
3
1
5
8
3
8

S
t 

Jo
h
n
's

 H
o
u
se

, 
1
A
 K

n
o
ll 

R
is

e
, 
O

rp
in

g
to

n
, 
K
e
n
t 

B
R
6
 0

JX
T

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
F

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
E

  
  
0
1
6
8
9
 8

8
8
2
2
2
  
  
  
  
 0

1
6
8
9
 8

8
8
2
9
9
  
  
  
  
 o

rp
in

g
to

n
@

ca
lf
o
rd

se
a
d
e
n
.c

o
.u

k

w
w

w
.c

a
lf

o
rd

s
e

a
d

e
n

.c
o

.u
k

O
R
P
IN

G
T
O

N
W

IN
C
H

E
S
T
E
R

L
O

N
D

O
N

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

C
H

K
D

IN
IT

D
A
T
E

R
E
V

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N

A
1

 S
H

E
E

T

O
rb

it

E
d
e
n
b
ri
d
g
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 -

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
se

ct
io

n
s

1
/1

0
0
@

A
1

0
2
-0

6
-1

0
h
jl

K
0
9
-0

5
3
4

2
0
5

C

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



N
O

T
E
:

T
H

IS
 D

R
A
W

IN
G

 H
A
S
 B

E
E
N

 P
R
O

D
U

C
E
D

 B
Y
 E

L
E
C
T
R
O

N
IC

 M
E
A
N

S
. 
S
H

O
U

L
D

 T
H

E
 S

C
A
L
E
 M

E
A
S
U

R
E
M

E
N

T
S
 B

E
 T

A
K
E
N

 B
Y
 M

E
A
N

S
 O

T
H

E
R
 T

H
A
N

 E
L
E
C
T
R
O

N
IC

 (
e
.g

. 
F
R
O

M
 A

 P
R
IN

T
E
D

 C
O

P
Y
),

 T
H

E
 F

O
L
L
O

W
IN

G

M
U

S
T
 B

E
 T

A
K
E
N

 I
N

T
O

 C
O

N
S
ID

E
R
A
T
IO

N
 B

E
F
O

R
E
 S

C
A
L
IN

G
 I

S
 U

N
D

E
R
T
A
K
E
N

:

1
. 
E
N

S
U

R
E
 T

H
A
T
 T

H
E
 C

O
P
Y
 H

A
S
 B

E
E
N

 P
R
IN

T
E
D

/P
L
O

T
T
E
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 S

T
A
T
E
D

 S
H

E
E
T
 S

IZ
E
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 P

L
O

T
T
IN

G
 S

C
A
L
E
 S

E
T
 T

O
 A

 C
O

R
R
E
C
T
 R

A
T
IO

.

2
. 
E
N

S
U

R
E
 T

H
A
T
 A

N
 A

D
E
Q

U
A
T
E
 A

L
L
O

W
A
N

C
E
 (

D
E
P
E
N

D
A
N

T
 O

N
 T

H
E
 S

T
A
T
E
D

 S
C
A
L
E
) 

IS
 M

A
D

E
 F

O
R
 T

H
E
 I

N
E
V
IT

A
B
L
E
 D

IS
T
O

R
T
IO

N
S
 I

N
T
R
O

D
U

C
E
D

 B
Y
 P

L
O

T
T
IN

G
/P

R
IN

T
IN

G
 A

N
D

 C
O

P
Y
IN

G
 P

R
O

C
E
S
S
E
S
.

3
. 
M

A
R
K
E
D

 C
R
IT

IC
A
L
 D

IM
E
N

S
IO

N
S
 A

R
E
 T

O
 B

E
 R

E
G

A
R
D

E
D

 A
S
 H

A
V
IN

G
 P

R
E
C
E
D

E
N

C
E
 O

V
E
R
 T

H
E
 S

C
A
L
E
D

 V
A
L
U

E
S
.

S
ca

le

T
it
le

P
ro

je
ct

C
lie

n
t

D
a
te

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
C
h
e
ck

e
d
 B

y
R
e
v
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o
:

ca
lf
o
rd

se
a
d
e
n
 L

L
P
 i
s 

a
 L

im
it
e
d
 L

ia
b
ili

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 &

 W
a
le

s 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

O
C
3
1
5
8
3
8

S
t 

Jo
h
n
's

 H
o
u
se

, 
1
A
 K

n
o
ll 

R
is

e
, 
O

rp
in

g
to

n
, 
K
e
n
t 

B
R
6
 0

JX
T

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
F

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
E

  
  
0
1
6
8
9
 8

8
8
2
2
2
  
  
  
  
 0

1
6
8
9
 8

8
8
2
9
9
  
  
  
  
 o

rp
in

g
to

n
@

ca
lf
o
rd

se
a
d
e
n
.c

o
.u

k

w
w

w
.c

a
lf

o
rd

s
e

a
d

e
n

.c
o

.u
k

O
R
P
IN

G
T
O

N
W

IN
C
H

E
S
T
E
R

L
O

N
D

O
N

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

C
H

K
D

IN
IT

D
A
T
E

R
E
V

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N

A
1

 S
H

E
E

T

O
rb

it

E
d
e
n
b
ri
d
g
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 -

 E
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s

1
/1

0
0
@

A
1

2
6
-0

4
-1

0
h
jl

K
0
9
-0

5
4
5

2
0
3

F

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



N
O

T
E
:

T
H

IS
 D

R
A
W

IN
G

 H
A
S
 B

E
E
N

 P
R
O

D
U

C
E
D

 B
Y
 E

L
E
C
T
R
O

N
IC

 M
E
A
N

S
. 
S
H

O
U

L
D

 T
H

E
 S

C
A
L
E
 M

E
A
S
U

R
E
M

E
N

T
S
 B

E
 T

A
K
E
N

 B
Y
 M

E
A
N

S
 O

T
H

E
R
 T

H
A
N

 E
L
E
C
T
R
O

N
IC

 (
e
.g

. 
F
R
O

M
 A

 P
R
IN

T
E
D

 C
O

P
Y
),

 T
H

E
 F

O
L
L
O

W
IN

G

M
U

S
T
 B

E
 T

A
K
E
N

 I
N

T
O

 C
O

N
S
ID

E
R
A
T
IO

N
 B

E
F
O

R
E
 S

C
A
L
IN

G
 I

S
 U

N
D

E
R
T
A
K
E
N

:

1
. 
E
N

S
U

R
E
 T

H
A
T
 T

H
E
 C

O
P
Y
 H

A
S
 B

E
E
N

 P
R
IN

T
E
D

/P
L
O

T
T
E
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 S

T
A
T
E
D

 S
H

E
E
T
 S

IZ
E
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 P

L
O

T
T
IN

G
 S

C
A
L
E
 S

E
T
 T

O
 A

 C
O

R
R
E
C
T
 R

A
T
IO

.

2
. 
E
N

S
U

R
E
 T

H
A
T
 A

N
 A

D
E
Q

U
A
T
E
 A

L
L
O

W
A
N

C
E
 (

D
E
P
E
N

D
A
N

T
 O

N
 T

H
E
 S

T
A
T
E
D

 S
C
A
L
E
) 

IS
 M

A
D

E
 F

O
R
 T

H
E
 I

N
E
V
IT

A
B
L
E
 D

IS
T
O

R
T
IO

N
S
 I

N
T
R
O

D
U

C
E
D

 B
Y
 P

L
O

T
T
IN

G
/P

R
IN

T
IN

G
 A

N
D

 C
O

P
Y
IN

G
 P

R
O

C
E
S
S
E
S
.

3
. 
M

A
R
K
E
D

 C
R
IT

IC
A
L
 D

IM
E
N

S
IO

N
S
 A

R
E
 T

O
 B

E
 R

E
G

A
R
D

E
D

 A
S
 H

A
V
IN

G
 P

R
E
C
E
D

E
N

C
E
 O

V
E
R
 T

H
E
 S

C
A
L
E
D

 V
A
L
U

E
S
.

S
ca

le

T
it
le

P
ro

je
ct

C
lie

n
t

D
a
te

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
C
h
e
ck

e
d
 B

y
R
e
v
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o
:

ca
lf
o
rd

se
a
d
e
n
 L

L
P
 i
s 

a
 L

im
it
e
d
 L

ia
b
ili

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 &

 W
a
le

s 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

O
C
3
1
5
8
3
8

S
t 

Jo
h
n
's

 H
o
u
se

, 
1
A
 K

n
o
ll 

R
is

e
, 
O

rp
in

g
to

n
, 
K
e
n
t 

B
R
6
 0

JX
T

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
F

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
E

  
  
0
1
6
8
9
 8

8
8
2
2
2
  
  
  
  
 0

1
6
8
9
 8

8
8
2
9
9
  
  
  
  
 o

rp
in

g
to

n
@

ca
lf
o
rd

se
a
d
e
n
.c

o
.u

k

w
w

w
.c

a
lf

o
rd

s
e

a
d

e
n

.c
o

.u
k

O
R
P
IN

G
T
O

N
W

IN
C
H

E
S
T
E
R

L
O

N
D

O
N

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

C
H

K
D

IN
IT

D
A
T
E

R
E
V

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N

A
1

 S
H

E
E

T

O
rb

it

E
d
e
n
b
ri
d
g
e

S
it
e
 S

e
ct

io
n
s 

w
it
h
 f

o
rm

e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
p
ro

fi
le

 s
h
o
w

n

1
/2

0
0
@

 A
1

1
9
-0

7
-1

0
h
jl

K
0
9
-0

5
3
4

1
2
1

C

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



�����������	�


�
�����
������
��	�

��
���	��
�����
�	����
���
 �
��

����	�������

��
���	��
���
��

����� !

����"���
�������
��##���
�	������#��$	�
���%
��
�������
��#��&
��'

 (��((
���)�
���*
��+
�
���	���)	�����(���
����	�	�����
��((��	��
��,

��-�����	��'

Approximate Annual Outputs:

SAP 2005

System: 19,296               kWh/yr

CO2 Emmisions Avoided: 10,960                kg(CO2,eq)/yr

Detailed simulation: 

System: 19,705               kWh/yr

CO2 Emmisions Avoided: 11,193                kg(CO2,eq)/yr

This estimate of performance is based on a basic simulation of the proposed system, and may not include for local shading or detailed ohmic 

losses. The results are determined by a mathematic model calculation.

.//.00/

..�*����
��1/./

"The performance of solar PV systems is impossible to predict with certainty due to the variation in the amount of solar radiation (sunlight) from 

location to location and from year to year. This estimate is based upon the governments standard assessment procedure for energy rating 

buildings (SAP) and is given for guidance only. It should not be considered a guarantee of performance." - MIS 3002

-��	(��((
�
���������
�)��"(�)	����
����#�
�
��	����(	���
�����	�
�
(�#
�	��'���������	����������
��(	�
������
�
������	�	�	
(�

)	����
�#��$	�
�������
�2��"�+��
#�������
�#
�#�(
(����	�(�)��"(�����'

����#�������3��
�(���
���$
�
�������1��
������
����
�
�(��
�����

��./��
���#
��������
��
�����

�������4/5�#�)
���
�#
��

������10��
����
�����

��������/5�#�)
���
�#
�'�� ������
��#���(����
�)	�����(��������1��
������
����
�
�(��
�����

�

�	�	�
�

��
������)	���	(��
��%
����	���������16'.1�"�#���������
���	������������
�	�(����
�����

7��
���	��
�����
�	����
���
7��
�	$
�	���#�)
�����6'6��#
��
�#
��"	���)������
��

#�
(�8 ��������9
('���
����	���)	����
�(
�&
������������
���	���
�(
����:5�#
���
������

�3-�;��	��
$
��	(���
���
��
�<'-����
�������#���
�
(����
�#�)
���������
��
	��	��(�

���(
�#�	����)
�)	�����
�	����
������
�����
�
9�
((�
�	�('���
�3�)
��3
����(
�

 ��

�
���;33 <��
�(��������	�	�	���#
�	������10��
��(�����)	���������$
�������
�


9	(�	������	������
�	���
(	�
�'

��
�����
��	���	(�������	9
��#�	�
���(	(�����60����(��������
����
������	(��
��
������
��)�	���	�������
�(
�&
�������
%
����	��'�

��
�(�(�
��%
��
������
(	���	(�	��	���	$
����������	(�(
�&
�������
$	(	��������)	����
���(��
��
����(
�$
������
�
���	�����
(	��'�

��
����	�	#��
����(�(������
�(��
��
����(
�$
��	(��##��9	���
���=.�0//�>�$���������
���(�(������
�
�
���	�����
(	���	(�

�##��9	���
���=:�0//�>�$��'���
(
���(�(�)	����
����	���	����
���
��
����*
��+
�
���	��'�?�)
$
���	����
����(
��������
�����

���
�)	(
�$	���
�	�(������	���#�(�@(
�$
����
�)	����
���
��	���
�����������
���(�(������
�(
�$
�������
(	��'

�

Registered Office: 12-13 Ship Street, Brighton, East Sussex. BN1 1AD

VAT Number : 977 7742 49

Company Number : 06915843

Page 53



��������	�
	����
����

/

./

1/

:/

6/

0/

�/

A/

�/

4/

.//

���' ,
�' 2��'  #�' 2�� �
�
 �
��  
�' �
#' *��' ��$' !
�'

��������	�
	����


/

0//

.�///

.�0//

1�///

1�0//

:�///

���' ,
�' 2��'  #�' 2�� �
�
 �
��  
�' �
#' *��' ��$' !
�'

Page 54



�
�)��"�)	�����$��	
�������������#
(������	�����������
���

(
��
�������������������('�������������#
�)	�����$
�	�7(��)��

#
�#�(
��
	�����
��	���(�(�
�'

Page 55



2������(����	�
����
�
(

)��"�)	���(������
��(�)�	��

���(	(�������(	���
�(	�	�������(���

)	������
�
����(��
��
�
'

��
���(
����
�	�������#���
��	��

	(����)��(	�	���

����"('��
(
���
��
��	������	�

)��
�(��
�(
�	����##��9'

/':����������
�	������#���
((
�'

�������(���
���
����
��
�'�

2������(����	�
��
��(����	
$
����	����
$
�����
��	�	
�������
#����.05�������
�#���	�
������(
	����


)�
��(#��
�	(��	�	�
������(���������
�	
�@(	B
��(�(�
�('

3���@�����
��	���(����	�
����
�
(���$
�(������
��(�

)�	�����
����
�
#���������(�����(	�	�������(���('�

��
��
��(���
��
���������(��(	�	��������"(�����

��$
������(��#���
��������
�(
����
'�

3������(����	�
����
�
(���
�(�	�������
((�
��	�	
���

;
#����.:5<�������������(����	�
����
�
(���
����(��

�
((��(���
	��#���
��	���	(��
((����#�
9'���
����
�

��
���(��)	�
(#�
���������
�(
	����
�����#����$����	��

(�(�
�(����(	���
@���	������
(��(�)
����(������
�	
��

(�(�
�('

��	�@�	�������	�������#��
(����
�
(�(	�	�������
�
(���


�
�
������(��
��
�
���	��
�
����'�C(	�����	(��
����������)�	���

(�$
(������)����
�	��(����
�(	�	���������
��
��(�	(��##�	
�����

�����((�#���
�����
��(����$�#�
���	(#�(	�	��

D���
�(	�	�������
��	(������1��	����(���	�"'� �(�����������	��	(

6/��	�
(���	(���	�"'��	����'05�
��	�	
�������
����
��
((�
��	�	
���

��������(����	�
����
�
(���
����
����(���
((������	���
��(����


�
����#���
��	������
����$
���$�����
(�	��)����(
���
��	��(��

����
��
���	��
(
��	��������	�	��('

2	�������#��
(�(	�	�������
�
(���
����"���
���������"'

Page 56



-���+���)	��@�!	�
���� ��
��
��(	����
�
 3�(	�	��

�
����	����

-����
���$
�����%

(�	��(��#�
�(
���������3�
��E
���(�
�����/A40��

A/��0.0'�*��
�)	(
����#���

�����
�
���
��)
��("��������
��
�
������


(���
������)	���

.'� ���#�������	(���$
�	����
��
����
��
�(	��
�����	��	���
���
��

���
#����
������
��
��(����(
�$
���
��	�
�����#��
�.F

1'� �(	��
��3�)
��3
����(
� ��

�
�������
���������
�#��#�(
��

	�(������	���(	�
('

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

: 
D

e
li

ve
ri

n
g

 n
e

w
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
t 

th
e

 h
e

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

A
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

fr
o

m
 O

rb
it

 H
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 T
h

e
 H

il
l 

G
ro

u
p

 

fo
r 

K
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c

il

Page 59



T
h

e
 H

il
l 

G
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 b

u
il

t 
a

 r
e

p
u

ta
ti

o
n

 i
n

 

th
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
fo

r 
h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
, 

b
e

s
p

o
k

e
 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s

p
o

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

Page 60



Page 61



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 

4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
 U

n
it

in
g

 E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 -

 D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

T
a

b
le

 o
f 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

 

1
. 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
 

2
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 
 

 
 

 
 

6
 

3
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
 

 
 

 
9

 

4
. 

In
v

o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c

a
l 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 
 

 
1

1
 

5
. 

D
e

s
ig

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

2
 

6
. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
3

 

7
. 

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

7
 

8
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

 
3

1
 

9
. 

L
e

g
a

ls
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

2
 

1
0

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

ls
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
4

 

1
1

. C
a

s
e

 S
tu

d
ie

s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
5

 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 m

u
c
h

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 e
n

c
o

m
p

a
s
s
in

g
 a

 v
a

s
t 

ra
n

g
e

 
o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
u
s
e

r 
g

ro
u

p
s
. 
T

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

is
 b

u
ild

in
g

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e

d
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 s
a

le
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
m

in
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 f
o

rm
e

r 
E

d
e

n
 V

a
lle

y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
s
it
e

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
re

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 4

0
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 i
n

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 a

n
d

 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 t
e
n

u
re

s
. 
 

T
h

e
 O

rb
it
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

ill
 G

ro
u

p
 a

re
 p

a
rt

n
e

ri
n
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
o
n

 t
h

is
 v

e
ry

 e
x
c
it
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 f
ir

s
t 

c
la

s
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

e
n

u
re

 b
lin

d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 t
o

 a
ll 

H
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

o
w

n
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
 b

ri
e

f.
 

T
h

e
 G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 w

it
h

 K
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
n

 o
th

e
r 

s
it
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 E

lli
n

g
to

n
 S

c
h

o
o

l,
 

R
a

m
s
g

a
te

 a
n

d
 V

ic
to

ri
a

 H
o

u
s
e

, 
M

a
rg

a
te

. 
 T

h
e

 O
rb

it
 G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 o

v
e

r 
4

0
 y

e
a

rs
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
s
 

n
o

w
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

O
rb

it
 o

p
e

ra
te

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 3

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
O

ff
ic

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

o
u

th
, 

M
id

la
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 E
a

s
t 

o
f 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

3
5

,0
0

0
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

m
e

s
 o

f 
v
a

ry
in

g
 t

e
n

u
re

 i
n

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

  
O

u
r 

m
is

s
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

is
 ‘
B

u
il

d
in

g
 B

ri
g

h
te

r 
F

u
tu

re
s

 f
o

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

’ 
b

y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

lly
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 
n

e
w

 a
n

d
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

O
rb

it
 G

ro
u

p
 L

im
it
e

d
 h

a
s
 a

n
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
tr

a
c
k
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 o
n

 t
im

e
 a

n
d

 o
n

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
in

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
tr

a
d

in
g

 y
e

a
r 

w
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 H

C
A

 t
o

p
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 s
ta

tu
s
 i
n

 a
ll 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
a

te
g

o
ri

e
s
. 
T

h
e

 c
a

te
g

o
ri

e
s
 a

re
  

 
A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 T

a
k
e

u
p
 

 
S

ta
rt

 o
n

 S
it
e

 

 
P

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

T
h

e
 g

ro
u

p
 a

ls
o

 b
o

a
s
ts

 s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 

m
o

ti
v
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 i
n

 t
h
e

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 t

h
e

 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 O

rb
it
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

lly
 s

tr
iv

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 o
u

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 i
n

 O
rb

it
’s

 
O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
A

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 u

n
d

e
rw

ri
tt

e
n

 b
y
 o

u
r 

v
a

lu
e

s
 o

f 
‘H

o
n

e
s

ty
, 

In
n

o
v

a
ti

o
n

, 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

E
x

c
e

ll
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
p

e
c

t.
’

H
ill

 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 
th

e
 U

K
’s

 l
e
a

d
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
to

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

m
e

s
. 

M
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
s
 

p
ro

c
u

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
ri

n
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 J

o
in

t 
V

e
n

tu
re

s
 w

it
h

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
.

T
h

e
ir

 a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 o

n
-s

it
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
g

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p

p
ly

 c
h

a
in

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 k
e

y
 

fa
c
to

r 
in

 t
h

e
ir

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
, 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 w

in
-w

in
 s

it
u

a
ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
to

rs
/s

u
p

p
lie

rs
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r.

 T
h

e
y
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 e

n
jo

y
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 t

ra
d

in
g

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 a
 g

ro
w

in
g

 n
u

c
le

u
s
 o

f 
s
u
b

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

lie
rs

. 
T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 
a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 t

ra
c
k
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
o
n

-s
it
e

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 b
o

th
 i
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 s
ta

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

T
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 g
iv

e
n

 t
im

e
 f

ra
m

e
s
, 

to
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 

m
a

x
im

u
m

 p
ri

c
e

. 
T

h
e

 k
e

y
 t

o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 s

e
le

c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
te

a
m

, 
w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

 a
 c

le
a

r 
c
lie

n
t 

b
ri

e
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 w
it
h

 
m

u
tu

a
l 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
n

 o
p

e
n

 a
n

d
 t

ru
s
ti
n

g
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 

H
ill

 i
s
 b

o
th

 w
ill

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

b
le

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 
T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 g
a

in
e

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 b
u

ild
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 a

s
 a

n
 e

x
a

m
p

le
 t

h
e

y
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
 £

5
m

 m
ix

e
d

 u
s
e

 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 i
n

 H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 b

e
c
a

m
e

 a
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 G

o
ld

 A
w

a
rd

 w
in

n
e

r 
in

 2
0

0
8

. 
 T

h
e

 
p

ro
je

c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 S
a

x
o

n
g

a
te

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
a

 f
u

lly
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 c

e
n

tr
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

w
h

o
le

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
; 

a
n

 i
n

s
p

ir
in

g
 s

p
a
c
e

 f
o

r 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
, 

le
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

, 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 

a
n

d
 l
if
e

lo
n

g
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

. 
 

O
rb

it
 a

n
d

 H
ill

 v
ie

w
 t

h
is

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
s
 a

n
 e

x
c
it
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 l
o

o
k
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 K
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 i
ts

 s
u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

Page 62



In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

5
 

O
rb

it
 G

ro
u

p
W

it
h

 o
v
e

r 
4

0
 y

e
a

rs
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

, 
O

rb
it
 G

ro
u

p
 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 g

ro
u
p

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 i
n

 
th

e
 M

id
la

n
d

s
, 

th
e

 S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 E
a

s
t 

o
f 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 o
v
e

r 
3

5
,0

0
0

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 

to
 t

h
o

s
e

 i
n

 g
re

a
te

s
t 

n
e
e
d
. 
 

O
rb

it
 H

o
m

e
s

 d
o

e
s
n

’t
 j
u
s
t 

b
u

ild
 a

n
d

 s
e

ll 
h

o
u

s
e
s
, 
it
 

c
re

a
te

s
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

W
o

rk
in

g
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 
O

rb
it
 G

ro
u

p
 s

lo
g

a
n

 o
f 

‘b
u

ild
in

g
 b

ri
g

h
te

r 
fu

tu
re

s
 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
’,
 O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
 a

im
s
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
th

is
 b

y
 t

h
in

k
in

g
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 n
o

rm
a

l 
R

S
L

 b
o

x
. 

 

A
s
 a

 n
e

w
ly

 c
re

a
te

d
 a

rm
 o

f 
th

e
 O

rb
it
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 a
 n

o
n

-
c
h

a
ri

ta
b

le
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
, 
O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
 i
s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 g
o

 
b

e
y
o

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

o
th

e
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 c
a

n
 

d
o

. 
F

o
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

, 
O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
 i
s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
h

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

o
u

tr
ig

h
t 

s
a

le
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 s

u
rp

lu
s
e

s
 t
o
 p

u
t 

b
a

c
k
 i
n

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 m
o

re
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

m
e

s
, 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 a

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 p

ip
e

lin
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 i
t 

m
o

s
t,

 w
h

ile
 

o
th

e
r 

R
S

L
s
 a

re
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

o
 c

u
t 

b
a

c
k
. 
 

  
 

T
h

is
 p

ip
e

lin
e

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

im
in

g
 a

t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 1
0

0
0

 
h

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
a

ll 
te

n
u

re
s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

b
y
 2

0
1

2
, 

b
u

t 
O

rb
it
 

H
o

m
e

s
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

to
 h

o
m

e
 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

w
a

y
s
. 

A
s
 t

h
e

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

H
o

m
e

B
u

y
 

A
g

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
, 

O
rb

it
 H

o
m

e
B

u
y
 A

g
e

n
ts

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 1

9
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t 

o
f 
a

ll 
H

o
m

e
B

u
y
 D

ir
e

c
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 l
a

s
t 

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 A
n

d
 O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
 i
s
 

d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 s

ta
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 h
o

m
e

s
, 

h
a

v
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

M
o

rt
g

a
g

e
s
 

R
e

s
c
u

e
s
 l
a

s
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r,

 w
it
h

 1
1

7
. 

 
  

 

O
rb

it
 H

o
m

e
s
 o

p
e

ra
te

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

id
la

n
d

s
, 

E
a

s
t 

a
n

d
 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

o
f 

E
n

g
la

n
d

, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

e
lli

n
g
 i
n

 
th

e
s
e

 t
h

re
e

 r
e

g
io

n
s
. 

O
u

r 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 o
ff

ic
e
s
 i
n

 
C

o
v
e

n
tr

y
, 

M
a

id
s
to

n
e

 a
n
d

 N
o

rw
ic

h
, 

w
it
h

 s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
H

o
m

e
B

u
y
 t

e
a

m
 w

o
rk

in
g

 r
e

m
o

te
ly

. 
  

H
il

l 
G

ro
u

p
 

H
il

l 
w

o
rk

s
 a

s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

o
u

th
 e

a
s
t.

 O
u

r 
h

e
a

d
o

ff
ic

e
 i
s
 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

, 
fr

o
m

 w
h

e
re

 w
e

 w
o

u
ld

 m
a

n
a

g
e

th
is

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 W
e

 h
a

v
e

 l
a

rg
e

 s
c
a

le
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 o
n

s
it
e

 i
n

 
s
o

u
th

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
o
u

th
 e

a
s
t.

H
ill

 i
s
 a

 r
e
s
p
e

c
te

d
a

n
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

ri
n

g
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

in
th

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
,
c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 i
n

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
1

,3
0

0
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
fr

o
m

 o
u

r 
fo

u
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
lly

 
p

la
c
e

d
 o

ff
ic

e
s
. 

T
o

 d
a

te
,
th

e
s
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 r
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 
s
iz

e
 a

n
d

 t
y
p
e

 f
ro

m
 l
u

x
u

ry
p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 n

e
w

 t
o

w
n

, 
g

re
e

n
fi
e

ld
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
u

rb
a

n
 e

s
ta

te
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
.

W
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 j
o

in
t 

v
e

n
tu

re
, 

a
n

d
 a

d
o

p
ti
n
g

 a
 p

a
rt

n
e

ri
n

g
e

th
o

s
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

m
a

n
y

b
e

s
p

o
k
e

, 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l-
le

d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
it
h

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
s
p

a
c
e

s
, 
s
p

o
rt

s
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
, 

e
a

c
h
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

d
e

s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 s

e
n

s
e

 
o

f 
p

la
c
e

 w
it
h
in

it
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
.

H
ill

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
lly

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
, 

e
it
h

e
r 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 h
o

u
s
in

g
a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
a

s
 a

w
a

rd
 w

in
n

in
g

 p
ri

v
a

te
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

.
C

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 t

h
e

 H
ill

 G
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 a

ro
u
n

d
 

7
0

0
 u

n
it
s
 i
n

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

p
ro

d
u

c
t,

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
p

la
c
e

, 
to

th
e

ri
g

h
t 

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
s
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f
a
n
y

s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

W
it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

e
rt

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d

e
s
ig

n
d

ir
e

c
to

r,
 w

e
 c

a
n

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

fa
ll

o
u

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
, 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

m
ix

e
d

 u
s
e

/m
ix

e
d

 t
e

n
u

re
o

r
1

0
0

%
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

. 
H

a
v
in

g
 t

h
is

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e

c
re

a
te

s
 a

 h
e
a

lt
h

y
 t

e
n

s
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

 
a

n
d

th
e

 i
n

e
v
it
a

b
le

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
. 

 

O
u

r 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 i
n

d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 q
u

a
lit

y
, 
a

w
a

rd
 w

in
n

in
g

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 a
d

d
v
a

lu
e

 a
t 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
. 

O
u

r 
z
e

ro
 

d
e

fe
c
ts

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

c
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t
in

 t
h

e
 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

h
ig

h
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 c

o
d

e
le

v
e

ls
. 

G
o

o
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 w

o
rk

m
a

n
s
h

ip
 e

n
a

b
le

s
 u

s
 t

o
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
d

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.

W
it
h

 a
 p

le
th

o
ra

 o
f 

n
e

w
, 

e
m

e
rg

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

x
c
it
in

g
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
 i
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

 f
o

c
u

s
o

n
 t

h
e

 c
ri

ti
c
a

l 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 -

 c
o

s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
. 

O
u

r 
ro

b
u

s
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
, 

d
ri

v
e

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 b

y
o

u
r 

s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 m
a

n
g

e
r,

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t,
 w

it
h

 e
a

rl
y

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t,

 w
e

 d
e

liv
e

r 
w

o
rk

a
b

le
, 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

n
o

w
 a

n
d

 i
n

 
th

e
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
.

H
u

n
te

rs
H

u
n

te
rs

is
 a

 l
e

a
d

in
g

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
c
y
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 U
K

. 
T

h
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

  
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 b
ro

a
d

 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 i
ts

 d
is

c
ip

lin
e

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 A
rc

h
it
e

c
tu

re
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r’
s
 A

g
e

n
ts

, 
C

o
s
t 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
c
y
, 

B
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
to

c
k
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
in

g
, 

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

D
M

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

F
o

rm
e

d
 i
n

 1
9

5
0

, 
H

u
n

te
rs

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 c

lie
n

ts
 w

it
h

 s
k
ill

s
 

a
n

d
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
in

g
 i
n

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
in

c
. 
p

ri
v
a

te
 

a
n

d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

, 
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

s
te

rp
la

n
n

in
g

, 
K

e
y
w

o
rk

e
r 

a
n

d
 S

tu
d

e
n

t 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
, 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

in
c
. 

S
E

N
, 

p
ri

m
a

ry
, 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

, 
te

rt
ia

ry
, 

O
ff

ic
e

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
s
p

a
c
e

, 
H

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

c
. 

a
c
u

te
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 

m
e

n
ta

l.

T
h
e
ir
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 c

o
v
e
rs

 m
a
n

y
 s

e
c
to

rs
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
h
e

a
lt
h
, 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 
T

h
e

y
 a

im
 i
n
 

a
ll 

o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
b
le

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
m

b
it
io

n
 w

it
h
 e

n
v
ir
o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
c
o
n
te

x
t,
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 t
h
a

t 
a
re

 f
it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
, 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

, 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
t,
 

fl
e
x
ib

le
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
n
te

x
t.
 T

h
e
y
 l
ik

e
w

is
e
 

lo
o
k
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 i
n
s
p
ir
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

 c
le

a
r 

e
x
p
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 b

ri
e
f 
a
n
d
 

v
is

io
n
. 

T
h

e
ir

 t
a

s
k
 i
s
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 o

r 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 f
it
 f
o

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

, 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

, 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

t,
 f
le

x
ib

le
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 c

o
n

te
x
t.

 T
h

e
ir

 
ta

s
k
 i
s
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 o

r 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 f
it
 f
o

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

, 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

, 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

t,
 f
le

x
ib

le
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 c

o
n

te
x
t.

 

T
h

e
ir

 f
ir

m
 e

m
p

lo
y
s
 o

v
e

r 
8

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 t
e

a
m

s
 

o
f 

h
ig

h
ly

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
s
ta

ff
 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

f 
a

 d
ir
e

c
to

r.
 T

h
e

ir
 I
T

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 o

ff
e

r 
o

u
r 

c
lie

n
t 

th
e

 b
e

s
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
y
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 
la

te
s
t 

C
A

D
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 s
o

lu
ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 

c
o

m
p

le
x
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 o

f 
m

o
d

e
rn

 b
u

ild
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 f

o
c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 c

lie
n

t 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
, 

n
o

t 
o

n
ly

 
o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
a

 
p

ro
je

c
t,

 b
u

t 
a

ls
o

 a
s
s
is

ti
n
g

 i
n

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

s
 f

o
r 

lif
e

 c
y
c
le

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
o

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

ly
 c

h
a

in
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

h
e

re
 

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
. 

c
a

lf
o

rd
s

e
a

d
e

n
c

a
lf

o
rd

s
e

a
d

e
n

is
 a

 l
e

a
d

in
g

, 
fo

rw
a

rd
 t

h
in

k
in

g
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
c
y
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 o
v
e

r 
2

0
0

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 f
ro

m
 f

o
u

r 
o

ff
ic

e
s
. 

O
u

r 
H

e
a

d
 

O
ff

ic
e

 i
s
 i
n

 O
rp

in
g

to
n

 w
it
h

 b
ra

n
c
h

 o
ff
ic

e
s
 l
o
c
a

te
d
 i
n

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
, 

W
in

c
h

e
s
te

r 
a

n
d

 B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

. 
 T

h
e

 
c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

o
v
e

rs
 A

rc
h

it
e

c
tu

re
, 

T
o

w
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
B

u
ild

in
g

 S
u

rv
e

y
in

g
, 

Q
u

a
n

ti
ty

 
S

u
rv

e
y
in

g
, 

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 A

g
e

n
t,

 
C

lie
n

t 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

, 
C

iv
il,

 S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
a

n
d

 M
&

E
 

E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
, 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 C

le
rk

 o
f 

W
o

rk
s
, 

C
D

M
C

 a
n

d
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 

S
a

fe
ty

. 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

s
e

 c
o

m
p

lim
e

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 m
u

tu
a

lly
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 c
o

m
p

e
te

n
c
ie

s
, 

w
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
 o

u
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
it
h

 
a

 t
ru

ly
 m

u
lt
i-

d
is

c
ip

lin
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 

T
h

e
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
ro

m
 s

in
g

le
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 t

o
 

m
u

lt
im

ill
io

n
-p

o
u

n
d

 m
ix

e
d

-u
s
e

 u
rb

a
n
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

. 
O

u
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
o

rt
fo

lio
 e

n
c
o

m
p

a
s
s
e
s
 a

ll 
fo

rm
s
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l,
 i
n

d
u
s
tr

ia
l,
 h

e
a

lt
h

, 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

re
ta

il 
a

n
d

 l
e
is

u
re

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
. 

O
u

r 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 e
x
te

n
d

s
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 P
u

b
lic

 P
ri

v
a

te
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 (

P
P

P
s
),

 P
ri

v
a

te
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

(P
F

Is
) 

a
n

d
 N

H
S

 L
o

c
a

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 T
ru

s
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 

T
h

e
ir

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
ta

n
tl
y
 e

v
o

lv
in

g
 e

x
p

e
rt

is
e

 
m

e
a

n
s
 w

e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

m
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

a
n

d
 l
a

te
s
t 

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 
p

e
rs

p
e

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

W
e

 b
e

lie
v
e

 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 a

n
d

 p
u

rs
u

e
 a

 f
le

x
ib

le
 a

n
d

 i
n
n

o
v
a

ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 
to

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 w

e
 e

n
c
o

u
n

te
r.

 

Page 63



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 

6
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
 U

n
it

in
g

 E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 -

 D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
, 
e

x
p

e
rt

is
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 
ta

k
e

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 
W

e
 a

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 s
o

u
th

 e
a
s
t,

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n
g

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
im

ila
r 

to
 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
. 

W
h

e
re

 w
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 
h

a
v
e

 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 
w

e
 a

p
p

o
in

t 
s
u

it
a

b
le

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 w
h

o
m

 w
e

 f
re

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

r.
 

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

is
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 p
u

t 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
a

 
te

a
m

 w
h

ic
h

 d
ra

w
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 e

x
p

e
rt

is
e

 l
o

c
a

lly
 

fr
o

m
 O

rb
it
, 

te
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
in

p
u

t 
fr

o
m

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 H
ill

 G
ro

u
p

, 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 
fr

o
m

 o
u

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 a

n
d

 H
ill

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l.
 T

h
e

 
s
u

p
p

ly
 c

h
a

in
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 p

la
y
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

ri
n

g
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a

re
 

g
iv

e
n

 h
e

re
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 c

h
a

rt
 o

v
e

rl
e

a
f.

 

F
o

r 
p

ro
je

c
t 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
e

 b
e

lie
v
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

it
e

 
S

p
e

c
if
ic

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 T

e
a

m
s
 (

S
S

B
T

) 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

. 
E

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
, 

o
u

r 
S

S
B

T
s
 o

v
e

rs
e

e
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

fr
o

m
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 t
o

 e
n

d
, 

e
lim

in
a

ti
n

g
 w

a
s
te

 a
n

d
 d

ri
v
in

g
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 b

y
:

 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 (
b

y
 p

o
o

lin
g

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

 

 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 q

u
ic

k
e

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 (

e
n

g
e

n
d
e

re
d

 b
y
 

tr
u

s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
te

a
m

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

) 
 

 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 (

k
e

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

rs
 a

re
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
te

a
m

)

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
o

u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
s
 a

 ‘
c
lo

s
e

 k
n

it
’ 
te

a
m

 
s
p

ir
it
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

s
 

 
q

u
ic

k
e

r 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 s

u
c
c
in

c
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

th
o

d
s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 u

n
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
, 

lo
n

g
 a

n
d

 
o

v
e

r-
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

A
n

 u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

o
f 
th

e
s
e

 s
m

a
ll 

S
S

B
T

s
 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

g
u

n
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 m
u

lt
i-

s
k
ill

e
d

 p
e

rs
o
n

n
e

l 
a

b
le

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 a
n

d
 q

u
ic

k
e

r 
d
e

c
is

io
n
s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 
th

e
ir

 u
s
u

a
l 
s
p

h
e

re
 o

f 
e

x
p

e
rt

is
e

. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

e
a

m
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 f

o
u

n
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 
te

a
m

 s
e

c
ti
o
n

 

O
rb

it
M

a
g

g
ie

 M
c

C
a

n
n

 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(E

a
s

t 
a

n
d

 
S

o
u

th
)

M
a

g
g

ie
 l
e

a
d

s
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 E
a

s
t 

a
n

d
 

S
o

u
th

 r
e

g
io

n
s
. 

S
h

e
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h

 
c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 t
o

 a
c
q

u
ir

e
 s

it
e

s
 f

o
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
s
a

le
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 s
it
e

s
, 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

, 

o
b

ta
in

in
g

 g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 b

u
ild

 n
e

w
 

h
o

m
e

s
. 

M
a

g
g

ie
 m

a
n

a
g

e
s
 t

h
e

 t
w

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

e
a

m
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 M
a

id
s
to

n
e

 a
n

d
 N

o
rw

ic
h

. 
  

J
e

ff
 K

n
o

w
le

s
  

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
 

J
e

ff
 m

a
n

a
g

e
s
 t

h
e

 ‘
p

ri
v
a

te
 f

o
r 

s
a

le
’ 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
la

n
. 

H
e

 h
a

s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

s
p

e
c
u

la
ti
v
e

 h
o

u
s
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 

fo
r 

o
v
e

r 
3

0
 y

e
a

rs
. 

H
e

 h
a

s
 h

e
ld

 S
e

n
io

r 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 
M

a
n

a
g

in
g

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
ro

le
s
 w

it
h

 B
e

rk
e

le
y
 H

o
m

e
s
, 

B
a

rr
a

tt
 

H
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 M
o

rr
is

 H
o

m
e

s
. 

P
ri

o
r 

to
 j
o

in
in

g
 O

rb
it
 

H
o

m
e

s
, 

h
e

 h
e

ld
 a

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
ro

le
 w

it
h

 W
o

ls
e

y
 

S
e

c
u

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

, 
u

s
in

g
 s

e
n

io
r 

d
e

b
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
a

jo
r 

b
a

n
k
s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 t
o

p
 u

p
 m

e
z
z
a

n
in

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g

. 

S
a

ll
y
 R

ic
h

a
rd

s
  

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

 
W

it
h

 o
v
e

r 
e

ig
h

te
e

n
 y

e
a

rs
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
ig

h
t 

y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 S
a

lly
 l
e

a
d

s
 

th
e

 n
e

w
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 

in
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
3

0
0

-3
5

0
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 
h

o
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
. 

S
a

lly
 a

n
d

 h
e

r 
te

a
m

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 n
e

w
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

c
a

rr
y
in

g
 o

u
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 a
n

d
 

b
id

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 H
C

A
. 

 S
h

e
 a

ls
o

 
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 L
o

c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
s
e

e
k
in

g
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 

a
n

d
 n

e
w

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

. 

C
h

ri
s

 C
ra

ig
 

S
a

le
s

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

 C
h

ri
s
 l
e

a
d

s
 t
h

e
 O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
 s

a
le

s
 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
, 

H
o
m

e
b

u
y
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 
M

o
rt

g
a

g
e

 R
e

s
c
u

e
. 

 C
h

ri
s
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 
w

it
h

in
 p

ri
v
a

te
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

o
v
e

r 
3

9
 y

e
a

rs
 h

o
ld

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
S

a
le

s
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
w

it
h

 
fo

u
r 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

L
C

 c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 a

n
d

 w
a
s
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
fo

r 
A

n
g

lia
n
 

H
il

l
A

n
d

y
 H

il
l 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 
A

n
d

y
 H

ill
 i
s
 a

 C
h

a
rt

e
re

d
 B

u
ild

e
r 

w
it
h

 
o

v
e

r 
3

0
 y

e
a

rs
’ 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

h
o

u
s
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 s

e
c
to

r.
 H

a
v
in

g
 g

a
in

e
d

 
h

is
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

u
n

tr
y
’s

 l
e
a

d
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
A

n
d

y
 m

a
d

e
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n
, 

a
t 

th
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
4

0
, 

to
 s

e
t 

u
p

 H
ill

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
, 

h
a

v
in

g
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

 u
n
iq

u
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 

fo
r 

a
 t

ru
ly

 p
a

rt
n

e
ri

n
g

 f
o

c
u
s
e

d
, 

n
o

n
-a

d
v
e

rs
a

ri
a

l 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
a

n
y
. 

S
te

v
e

 K
a

n
e

 
D

e
p

u
ty

 M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
S

te
v
e

 K
a

n
e

’s
 q

u
a

n
ti
ty

 s
u

rv
e

y
in

g
 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n

-d
e

p
th

 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r.
 S

te
v
e

 
h

a
s
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
o

n
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
in

fo
rc

e
d

 c
o

n
c
re

te
 f

ra
m

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
, 

a
n

d
 h

e
 h

a
s
 h

a
d

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 c

o
s
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d

 
p

a
rt

n
e

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
ly

 c
h

a
in

. 

P
a

u
l 

J
o

rd
a

n
 

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
P

a
u

l 
J
o

rd
a

n
 h

a
s
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
o

n
-r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
re

te
 

fr
a

m
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
, 

fo
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 

te
c
h

n
iq

u
e

s
 a

n
d

 n
u

m
e

ro
u

s
 M

M
C

 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
. 
H

e
 i
s
 l
e

a
d

 d
ir

e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
a

n
y
 o

n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

, 
te

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
a

k
e

s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

.

P
e

te
r 

L
a

c
e

y
 

T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

P
e

te
r 

L
a

c
e

y
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 o

n
 a

 w
id

e
 

v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

1
5

 y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 l
iv

e
s
 i
n

 
th

e
 K

e
n

t 
a

re
a

. 
H

is
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 i
s
 i
n

 
p

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 h

is
 k

e
y
 f

o
c
u

s
 i
s
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
 –

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
M

o
s
t 

re
c
e

n
tl
y
 h

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
le

a
d

in
g

 p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a

m
s
 o

n
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 r

a
n

g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 £
5

0
0

k
 t

o
 

£
1

8
m

 i
n

 v
a

lu
e

. 

S
te

v
e

 J
o

n
e

s
 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

S
te

v
e

 J
o

n
e

s
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 f

o
r 

o
v
e

r 
2

0
 y

e
a

rs
 i
n

 
a

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
ro

le
s
, 

fr
o

m
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 a

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
/ 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
la

n
d

 a
c
q

u
is

it
io

n
, 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 A
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 S

te
v
e

 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 n

e
w

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 S
o

u
th

e
rn

 R
e

g
io

n
 

(S
o

u
th

 L
o

n
d

o
n

, 
K

e
n

t,
 S

u
s
s
e

x
, 

S
u

rr
e

y
) 

e
it
h

e
r 

b
y
 w

a
y
 

o
f 

jo
in

t 
v
e

n
tu

re
s
/p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 o

r 
la

n
d

-l
e

d
 p

a
c
k
a
g

e
 

d
e

a
ls

 w
it
h

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
s
. 

H
u

n
te

rs
N

e
il

 M
c

C
a

b
e

 
N

e
il 

jo
in

e
d

 H
u

n
te

rs
 i
n

 1
9

9
0

 a
n

d
 i
s
 a

 
m

a
in

 b
o

a
rd

 d
ir

e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
s
t 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
c
y
 t

e
a

m
, 

h
e

 l
e

a
d

s
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

 
to

 c
o

v
e

r 
a

ll 
s
e

c
to

rs
 w

it
h

in
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 

p
u

b
lic

 a
n

d
 p

ri
v
a

te
 d

o
m

a
in

s
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 
h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

fr
o

m
 l
a

rg
e

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 w

it
h

 m
ix

e
d

-u
s
e

 
te

n
u

re
 n

e
w

 b
u

ild
 a

n
d

 r
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
a

jo
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

h
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
t 
a

n
d

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 k
e

y
w

o
rk

e
r 

a
n

d
 h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p

le
x
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
 

T
o

b
y
 J

a
y

 
T

o
b

y
 j
o

in
e

d
 H

u
n

te
rs

 i
n

 2
0

0
6

 a
n

d
 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

s
e

c
to

r,
 h

e
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 o
n

 a
 w

id
e

 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 

p
u

b
lic

 a
n

d
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
ix

e
d

-u
s
e

, 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 
n

e
e
d

s
, 

k
e

y
w

o
rk

e
r,

 s
tu

d
e

n
t,

 s
h

e
lt
e

re
d

, 
w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
, 
s
p

e
c
ia

l 
n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 h
is

to
ri

c
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 r
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 v
a

lu
e

 f
ro

m
 £

2
.5

m
 t

o
 

£
1

5
0

m
, 

w
it
h

 a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

d
if
fe

ri
n

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
ro

u
te

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 m

e
th

o
d

s
. 

 

c
a

lf
o

rd
s

e
a

d
e

n J
o

h
n

 S
p

e
n

c
e

S
e

n
io

r 
A

rc
h

it
e

c
t 

w
it
h

 o
v
e

r 
4

0
y
rs

 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

. 
J
o

h
n

 h
a

s
 a

 w
id

e
 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 
d

e
s
ig

n
. 

H
e

 s
ta

rt
e

d
 h

is
 c

a
re

e
r 

in
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
a

rc
h

it
e

c
tu

re
, 
p

a
s
s
in

g
 a

ll 
o

f 
h

is
 

te
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 q

u
a

lif
y
in

g
 a

s
 a

n
 A

rc
h

it
e

c
t.
 

J
o

h
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
rc

h
it
e

c
tu

ra
l 
g

ro
u

p
 w

it
h

in
 

c
a

lf
o

rd
s
e

a
d
e

n
 i
n

 1
9

9
0

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 s

in
c
e

 l
e

d
 t

h
e

 
o

rg
a

n
iz

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 ‘
T

o
p

 1
0

0
 A

rc
h

it
e

c
tu

ra
l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 

in
 t

h
e

 U
K

’.
 A

 f
ir

m
 a

d
v
o

c
a

te
 o

f 
a

 m
u

lt
i-

d
is

c
ip

lin
a

ry
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

, 
J
o

h
n

’s
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 h

a
s
 g

iv
e

n
 h

im
 a

 u
n

iq
u

e
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

m
a

n
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

 t
y
p
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

o
ff

-s
it
e

 m
a

n
u

fa
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 d
e

s
ig

n
. 

Page 64



D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

7
 

P
ro

je
c

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
u

c
tu

re

Page 65



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
 U

n
it

in
g

 E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 -

 D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r 

S
c

o
p

e
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 a
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 

o
f 

K
C

C
 b

y
 C

lu
tt

o
n

s
 i
n

 N
o
v
e

m
b

e
r/

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

, 
O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 H
ill

 G
ro

u
p

 w
e

re
 

s
e

le
c
te

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 p

re
fe

rr
e

d
 b

id
d

e
r 

to
 b

o
th

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 

s
it
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o
rm

e
r 

E
d

e
n

 V
a

lle
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
fo

r 
a

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
re

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

4
0

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 n
e

w
 

1
4

0
0

 s
q

.m
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 t
o

 K
C

C
. 

E
d

e
n

 V
a

lle
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
w

a
s
 c

lo
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

o
f 

2
0

0
2

. 
S

in
c
e

 t
h

is
 t

im
e

, 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

h
a

v
e

 u
s
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

it
e

. 
D

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(K
C

C
) 

a
n

d
 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

(S
D

C
) 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 

re
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

 f
o

r 
a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 b

e
g
a

n
 i
n

 2
0

0
3

. 
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h
e

 s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

rb
it
/H

ill
 a

s
 t

h
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
, 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 h
a

d
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
tu

a
l 
u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 
T

h
e

 
n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 v

a
ri

o
u

s
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
 w

e
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 

m
u

c
h

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 c
re

a
te

 a
n

 a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
a

l 
b
u

ild
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 m

e
e

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

A
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

th
is

 y
e

a
r,

 
a

n
d

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t.

  

It
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t,

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 t

e
rm

s
 

o
f 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
s
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

.1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t,
 

th
e

re
 a

re
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 i
m

p
o

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r/

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 i
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 s
e
c
o

n
d

 p
h

a
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 f
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

l.
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
s
e
n

t 
D

e
ta

ile
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 g
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 1
5

th
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 d
e

m
o

lit
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 4

0
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
. 

F
it

 f
o

r 
P

u
rp

o
s

e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

 
 

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
e

n
tr

e
 h

a
s
 g

ra
d

u
a

lly
 d

e
te

ri
o

ra
te

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

rs
, 

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
m

a
n
y
 o

f 
it
s
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
. 

In
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
u
t 

p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
e

w
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
it
 w

a
s
 f

e
lt
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 b
e

s
t 

w
a

y
 o

f 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
o

n
g

 t
e
rm

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

fa
c
ili

ty
, 

w
a

s
 t
o

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e

 
p

ro
je

c
t 

b
y
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 o

u
t 

th
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
 i
n

v
e

s
to

rs
. 

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 
th

a
t 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
in

g
 o

u
t 

lo
n

g
 t
e

rm
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

. 
W

it
h

 s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

a
n

c
h

o
r 

te
n

a
n

ts
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 t
h
e

n
 b

e
 a

 
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
p

re
s
e

n
c
e

 o
n
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
s
e

 
te

n
a

n
ts

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
K

C
C

 u
s
e

rs
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

d
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

te
n

a
n

ts
. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fl
e

x
ib

le
 s

p
a

c
e
s
 w

ill
 t

h
e

n
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
re

n
ta

l 
s
p

a
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
u

s
e
rs

 t
o

 h
ir

e
 o

u
t 
a

n
d

 
e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 i
s
 a

 b
u

s
y
 a

n
d

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 

a
t 

th
e

 h
e

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 
b

e
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 f

u
ll 

ti
m

e
. 

It
 i
s
 h

o
p

e
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

G
ro

u
p

 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
 

E
v
o

lv
e

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 

F
a

m
ily

 A
c
ti
o

n
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

it
h

 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

C
it
iz

e
n

s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 

B
u

re
a

u
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

d
v
ic

e

E
d

e
n

 C
h

u
rc

h
 

R
e

lig
io

u
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

Y
o

u
th

 C
lu

b
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le

L
ib

ra
ry

B
o

o
k
 l
e

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

Y
M

C
A

T
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
 t

im
e

 u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 
w

ill
 b

e
 t

h
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
: 

G
ro

u
p

 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 
S

k
ill

s
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

W
e

s
t 

K
e

n
t 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n
 

H
e

lp
 w

it
h

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

M
e

n
c
a

p
S

o
c
ia

l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
a

d
u

lt
s
 

w
it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 

S
ta

n
g

ro
v
e

 A
re

a
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 

R
e

s
p

ir
a

to
ry

 g
ro

u
p

 
H

e
lp

 w
it
h

 q
u

it
ti
n

g
 

s
m

o
k
in

g

C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 j
o

b
 

c
lu

b
 

A
s
to

r 
S

e
n

io
r 

C
it
iz

e
n

s
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
c
lu

b
 

T
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 L

if
e

s
ty

le
 

G
ro

u
p

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
c
lu

b
 

E
d

e
n

a
ra

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
c
lu

b
 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 Q

u
ilt

e
rs

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
c
lu

b
 

A
lo

n
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
m

a
lle

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

a
n

d
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 t
a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
s
 a

n
d

 
w

h
e

n
. 

T
h

e
 A

ir
 T

ra
in

in
g

 C
o

rp
s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

o
n

 s
it
e

 w
ill

 r
e

m
a

in
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
W

h
e

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 w

e
 w

ill
 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 g
ro

w
 t

h
e

ir
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

F
a

c
il

it
ie

s
 

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
’s

 c
a

p
a

b
ili

ti
e
s
, 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 t
o

o
k
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 r

e
a

c
h

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 

e
v
e

ry
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 s
p

a
c
e

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 

fl
e

x
ib

ly
 w

h
e

n
 n

o
t 

in
 u

s
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

u
s
e

r.
 T

h
is

 
w

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 a

t 
a
ll 

ti
m

e
s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
p

a
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 
th

e
s
e

 w
ill

 n
o
w

 b
e

 d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
d

. 
A

 p
la

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 

c
a

n
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 s
e

e
n

 i
n

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

. 

L
a

rg
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

a
ll
 –

 S
u

it
a

b
le

 f
o
r 

w
o

rs
h

ip
, 

c
h

ild
c
a

re
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 e

n
-s

u
it
e
 o

ff
ic

e
 s

p
a
c
e

. 
T

h
e

 c
h

u
rc

h
 s

p
a

c
e

 i
s
 t
h

e
 

s
e

c
o

n
d

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

e
n

c
lo

s
e
d

 r
o

o
m

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 

b
e

 o
p

e
n

e
d

 u
p

 v
ia

 p
a

rt
it
io

n
 d

o
o

rs
 i
n

to
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 t

h
e

 
la

rg
e

s
t 

h
a

ll 
in

 E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
. 

L
a

rg
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

a
ll
 –

 S
u

it
a

b
le

 f
o
r 

c
la

s
s
 r

o
o

m
s
, 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

u
s
e

s
. 

P
a

rt
it
io

n
 d

o
o

rs
 a

llo
w

 r
e

c
o

n
fi
g
u

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 

ro
o

m
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

M
e

d
iu

m
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 h

a
ll

 (
A

) 
–

 S
u

it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
[m

in
o

r]
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 Y

o
g

a
, 
d

a
n

c
e

 c
la

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

a
n

c
e

 
fl
o

o
r 

fo
r 

w
e

d
d

in
g

 d
a

y
s
, 

it
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 a

re
a

 
w

ill
 p

re
d

o
m

in
a

n
tl
y
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
Y

M
C

A
 f

o
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
. 

P
a

rt
it
io

n
 d

o
o

rs
 a

llo
w

 t
h

is
 

ro
o

m
 t

o
 s

h
ri

n
k
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

M
e

d
iu

m
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 (
B

) 
–

 S
u

it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 l
ig

h
t 

m
a

n
u

a
l 
w

o
rk

s
, 

it
 i
s
 h

o
p

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 
a

re
a

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 s

p
a

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 Y

M
C

A
 w

it
h

 e
n

 
s
u

it
e

 o
ff

ic
e

 s
p

a
c
e

. 
P

a
rt

it
io

n
 d

o
o

rs
 a

llo
w

 t
h

is
 r

o
o
m

 t
o

 
s
h

ri
n

k
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

C
a

fé
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

re
a
 –

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

 f
o

r 
m

e
a

l 
ti
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 S

u
n

d
a

y
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
w

it
h

 
e

a
s
y
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 g
a

rd
e

n
. 

W
h

e
n

 n
o

t 
in

 u
s
e

 a
s
 a

 c
a

fé
 

th
e

 k
it
c
h

e
n

 c
a

n
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

s
. 
 

K
e

n
t 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
e

ra
p

y
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
s

o
ry

 
ro

o
m

s
 –

 A
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

o
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

.

S
e

n
s

o
ry

 r
o

o
m

–
 A

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

o
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 
 

Y
o

u
th

 C
lu

b
 –

 B
y
 f

a
r 

th
e

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

ro
o
m

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
th

is
 w

ill
 d

o
u
b

le
 u

p
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 d

a
y
 t

o
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 

E
v
o

lv
e

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
in

g
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
p

a
c
e

. 

F
o

y
e

r 
–

 A
 l
a

rg
e

 o
p

e
n

 s
p
a

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

-m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 a
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

T
h

e
 a

re
a

 
w

ill
 m

a
k
e

 a
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

v
ia

 a
 c

e
ili

n
g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

rc
h

 u
p

 
to

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 w

e
ll-

lit
, 

o
p

e
n
 a

n
d

 
w

e
lc

o
m

in
g

 s
p

a
c
e

. 
W

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 t

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 
re

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 d

e
s
k
 w

h
e

re
 s

ta
ff

 w
ill

 m
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 g

re
e

t 
u

s
e

rs
, 

a
 l
a

rg
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 w

it
h

 a
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 a

 
b

a
n

k
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

u
te

rs
 f

o
r 

in
te

rn
e

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

 f
le

x
ib

le
 s

p
a

c
e
 w

h
e

re
 b

o
o

k
s
h
e

lv
e

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 

Page 66



D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

9
 

p
u

s
h

e
d

 b
a

c
k
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 u

s
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 

a
n

 a
rt

 g
a

lle
ry

. 
 

O
ff

ic
e

s
–

 T
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

ff
ic

e
s
 a

ro
u
n

d
 

th
e

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 t

h
e

 b
ig

g
e

s
t 

o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

h
e

 C
it
iz

e
n
s
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u

 a
re

a
. 

U
ti
lis

in
g

 a
 b

u
ild

in
g

 f
o

r 
s
o

 m
a

n
y
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
y
 s

ti
g

m
a

 o
f 

g
o

in
g

 i
n

to
 

s
u

c
h

 a
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 w

ill
 n

o
 l
o

n
g
e

r 
b

e
 t

h
e

 c
a
s
e

. 
F

le
x
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
 s

p
a

c
e

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 t

o
 

a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

u
rg

e
ri

e
s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

. 

K
it

c
h

e
n

–
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
k
it
c
h

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 l
a

rg
e

 
e

n
o

u
g

h
 t

o
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 s
e

rv
e

 t
h

e
 

d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ty
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

a
ll 

A
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
a

 s
e

rv
e

ry
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

S
to

ra
g

e
–

 N
u

m
e

ro
u

s
 l
a

rg
e

, 
m

e
d

iu
m

 a
n

d
 s

m
a

ll 
s
to

ra
g

e
 a

re
a

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 s
to

ra
g

e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 f

o
r 

la
rg

e
 e

v
e

n
ts

.

O
u

td
o

o
r 

s
p

a
c

e
 –

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 o
u

td
o

o
r 

s
p
a

c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
p

la
y
, 

re
s
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
a

d
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
. 
 

T
o

il
e

ts
a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 f

a
c

il
it

ie
s
 –

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 f
iv

e
 

to
ile

ts
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
, 

th
is

 i
s
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 f
o

u
r 

in
 t

h
e

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
S

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 W
e

lf
a

re
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 
d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 b
a

b
y
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 a

 m
u

lt
i 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

 
c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 r

o
o

m
. 

O
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

s
 t

h
e

 j
o

in
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
n

g
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
u

s
e

r 
g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 
a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

, 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 b
u

ilt
-i

n
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 o

f 
u

s
e

. 
T

h
e

 f
o

ld
a
b

le
 p

a
rt

it
io

n
 w

a
lls

 
a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
e

a
s
y
 r

e
c
o

n
fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
p

a
c
e

s
 i
n

to
 e

x
tr

a
 

la
rg

e
, 

la
rg

e
, 
m

e
d

iu
m

 o
r 

e
v
e

n
 s

m
a

ll 
s
p

a
c
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 

b
u

ild
in

g
 h

a
s
 a

 w
id

e
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 
w

ill
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 i
n

 s
u

c
h

 a
 w

a
y
 t

h
a

t 
a

d
a

p
ta

ti
o

n
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 
m

a
d

e
 a

t 
a

 l
a

te
r 

d
a

te
 i
f 

n
e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

T
h
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 i
s
 f
u

lly
 

D
D

A
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
p

la
n

s
 w

ill
 g

o
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 

b
e

y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 D

is
a
b

ili
ty

 
D

is
c
ri

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 A

c
t.

 

G
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 f
la

t 
ro

o
fs

, 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
c
e

n
tr

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 p

it
c
h

e
d

 r
o

o
f 

w
it
h

 t
ile

s
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 

e
n

s
u

re
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 c
o

s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

d
u
c
e

d
 

fo
r 

te
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
llo

w
s
 t

h
e

 S
o

u
th

 f
a

c
in

g
 s

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
b

u
ild

in
g

 t
o

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
h

o
to

v
o

lt
a

ic
 p

a
n

e
ls

, 
ra

in
 w

a
te

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

lly
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 d

e
v
ic

e
s
. 

Page 67



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 E

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 

1
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

W
e

 f
ir

m
ly

 b
e

lie
v
e

 t
h

e
 o

n
ly

 w
a

y
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
is

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

fu
ll 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

, 
o

th
e

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 t

h
e

 d
e
s
ig

n
, 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 a

n
d

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 T
h

e
 l
o

c
a
l 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 f
o

c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 s
te

e
ri

n
g

 b
o

d
y
 i
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
t 

w
ill

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
h

is
 h

ig
h

 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

W
e

 a
re

 p
ro

u
d

 o
f 

o
u

r 
re

c
o

rd
 o

n
 w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
, 

a
d

o
p
ti
n

g
 a

 
p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 g
o

o
d

 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
. 

 

E
s

ta
b

li
s

h
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

 &
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s

h
ip

s
 

W
it
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 s

ta
rt

 w
e

 w
ill

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 b

u
ild

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

s
 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
 d

o
n

e
. 

W
e

 w
ill

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 
d

y
n

a
m

is
m

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

th
is

 f
a

r.
 

W
e

’ll
 w

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 d

a
y
 o

n
e

 a
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
 t
h

is
 g

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t
ru

s
t,

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 a

ll 
s
id

e
s
. 

In
 a

n
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 c
h

o
ic

e
s
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
, 

a
n

d
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

 a
t 

s
o

m
e

 
p

o
in

t 
a

n
d

 w
e

 w
ill

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 

ta
k
e

n
 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

E
s

ta
b

li
s

h
in

g
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

re
s

e
n

c
e

 
O

u
r 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 t

e
a

m
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
ia

is
o

n
 t

e
a

m
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

re
s
e

n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 D

a
y
 O

n
e

, 
s
it
u

a
te

d
 

a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

e
a

m
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 
d

is
c
re

e
tl
y
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 s

e
n

d
 a

 c
le

a
r 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

 t
h

a
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d

 s
ta

rt
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n
c
e

 
a

m
o

n
g

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

. 
W

h
e

re
 

is
s
u

e
s
 d

o
 a

ri
s
e

 (
a

s
 t

h
e

y
 a

lw
a

y
s
 d

o
) 

h
a

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

 
o

n
s
it
e

, 
a

n
d

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 o

u
t 

o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 o
n
 t

h
e

 0
8

0
0

 
n

u
m

b
e

r,
 m

e
a

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
k
e

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
h

e
re

 t
o

 l
is

te
n

 
a

n
d

 s
o

rt
 o

u
t 
th

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 t

h
e

re
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

. 

In
 t

h
e

 s
ta

rt
-u

p
 p

h
a

s
e

 t
h
e

 t
e

a
m

 w
ill

 c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

 o
n

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a

lit
ie

s
, 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 c

le
a

r 
lin

e
s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 h
e

lp
in

g
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
  

 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 o

n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 
s
a

fe
ty

 m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
  

 
w

o
rk

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
 

 
o

th
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
  

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
n

 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, 
fr

o
m

 w
h

a
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 

e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
 t
h

is
 c

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

o
 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
h

o
a

rd
in

g
 a

rt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 
o

 
lit

te
r 

p
ic

k
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 

o
 

c
o

ff
e

e
 m

o
rn

in
g

s
 

o
 

B
B

Q
s
 

o
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

 
o

 
c
a

re
e

rs
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
d

a
y
s
 

o
 

p
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

 c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

rd
 t
h

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
e

ri
o

d
 

K
e

e
p

in
g

 e
v

e
ry

o
n

e
 i

n
 t

o
u

c
h

 
W

e
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
u

s
y
 l
iv

e
s
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
n
o

t 
a

lw
a

y
s
 a

tt
e

n
d

 f
o

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
, 

o
r 

d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 t
h

in
g

s
 i
n

 o
ff

ic
e
 h

o
u

rs
, 

s
o

 w
e

 
w

ill
 w

o
rk

 h
a

rd
 a

t 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 m
o

re
 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 
a

n
d

 
“a

rm
c
h

a
ir

 a
n

d
 d

o
o

rs
te

p
” 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 s

o
 

th
a

t 
w

e
 h

e
a

r 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

W
e

 k
n

o
w

 h
o

w
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

g
o

o
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 i
n

 
k
e

e
p

in
g

 e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d

 
b

u
ild

in
g

 c
o
n
s
e

n
s
u

s
 a

n
d

 m
o

m
e

n
tu

m
. 

W
e

’ll
 s

ta
rt

 o
ff
 

w
it
h

 a
 M

e
e

t 
th

e
 T

e
a

m
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 o
u

r 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
e

a
m

 s
o

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a
l 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 g

e
t 

to
 

k
n

o
w

 w
h

o
 t

h
e

y
’ll

 b
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

. 

W
e

’ll
 f

o
llo

w
 t

h
is

 u
p

 w
it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
 

 
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 w
it
h

 p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

re
g

u
la

r 
n

e
w

s
le

tt
e

rs

 
o

n
e

-t
o

-o
n

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

 
re

g
u

la
r 

b
ri

e
fi
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
s
 f

o
r 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rs

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

 
lia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 w
a

rd
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 i
n

 o
th

e
r’

s
 n

e
w

s
le

tt
e

rs
/m

a
g

a
z
in

e
 

 
o

p
e

n
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
in

g
 o

r 
w

e
e

k
e

n
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
c
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
m

e
d

ia
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a
l 
n

e
w

s
p

a
p

e
rs

 

A
 h

o
s
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

to
o

ls
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

a
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 

L
is

te
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
fe

e
d

b
a

c
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

ro
m

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
ir

 i
d

e
a

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
s
m

a
ll,

 
w

ill
 b

e
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
a

in
 w

a
y
s
 w

e
 e

n
s
u

re
 w

e
 a

re
 

g
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 r
ig

h
t.

 W
e

 w
ill

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

w
e

 s
e

t 
u

p
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 f

o
r 

re
c
e

iv
in

g
 t

h
is

 f
e

e
d
b

a
c
k
 –

fo
rm

a
l 
a

n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
l 
–

 a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 f
ro

m
 i
t.

 

In
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 i
s
: 

 
G

e
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 e

a
rl

y
 t

o
 g

e
t 

th
e

 b
e

s
t 

e
ff

e
c
t 

 
B

e
 c

le
a

r 
a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 a
im

s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
w

h
a

t 
h

a
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 t

a
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 
a

re
a

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 e

x
is

ts
 

 
In

v
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 b
y
 p

ro
fi
 l
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

w
e

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 

 
In

v
o

lv
e

 o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 w

h
o

 c
a

n
 w

o
rk

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 

o
u

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 b
ro

a
d

e
n

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

 
S

e
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
 r

u
le

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

 
H

a
v
e

 a
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

la
n

 w
it
h

 r
e

a
lis

ti
c
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 b

u
t 
a

ls
o

 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 r
is

k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
m

o
d

e
ls

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
c
a

l 
g

ro
u

p
s
. 

 
H

a
v
e

 a
 c

le
a

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
is

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls

 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

 
B

e
 f

le
x
ib

le
 a

b
o

u
t 

w
h

e
n

 t
o

 e
x
it
 a

n
d

 h
a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
to

 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
S

e
t 

m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k

Page 68



D
e

s
ig

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

1
1
 

S
c

h
e

d
u

le
 o

f 
A

c
c

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
s
it
e

 f
o

r 
a

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 4

0
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 w

o
rk

s
. 

  

E
d

e
n

 V
a

lle
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
w

a
s
 c

lo
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

o
f 

2
0

0
2

. 
S

in
c
e

 t
h

is
 t

im
e

, 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 u
s
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

. 
D

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(K
C

C
) 

a
n

d
 S

e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

(S
D

C
) 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 
th

e
 r

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

 f
o

r 
a

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 b

e
g
a

n
 i
n

 2
0

0
3

. 
 

A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 
2

0
0

2
, 

s
o
m

e
 
o

f 
th

e
 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 
h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 

u
s
e

d
 

b
y
 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

a
n

d
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
 

A
ll

 S
o

rt
s

 –
 A

ft
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
h

o
lid

a
y
s
 

c
lu

b
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

 a
g

e
d

 5
-1

5
; 

E
v

o
lv

e
 –

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
; 

O
ld

e
r 

L
if

e
s

ty
le

 G
ro

u
p

 –
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
ld

e
rl

y
 

m
e

e
ts

 o
n

c
e

 a
 w

e
e

k
; 

K
C

C
 Y

o
u

th
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 –
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 o

p
e

ra
te

s
 f

o
u

r 
ti
m

e
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
 a

ft
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

lu
s
 s

o
m

e
 w

e
e

k
e

n
d

s
 

a
n

d
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
h

o
lid

a
y
s
. 

T
h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 W
o

rk
e

r 
a

n
d

 h
is

 
b

u
rs

a
r 

ta
k
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
K

C
C

; 

K
C

C
 A

d
u

lt
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 –

 A
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
 

c
la

s
s
e
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 I

T
, 

d
a

n
c
e

, 
y
o

g
a

 a
n

d
 

c
ra

ft
s
; 

E
d

e
n

 C
h

u
rc

h
 –

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 u

s
e

s
 a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

t 
th

e
 

s
c
h

o
o

l;
 

F
a

m
il

y
 W

e
lf

a
re

 A
s

s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 –

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e

 
tw

o
 l
a

rg
e

 r
o

o
m

s
 a

n
d

 m
e

e
t 

5
 d

a
y
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 l
o

c
a
l 
fa

m
ili

e
s
; 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 –
 U

s
e

 a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

t 
th

e
 

s
c
h

o
o

l;
 

T
h

e
 a

re
a

 s
u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 t
h
e

 s
it
e

 i
s
 p

re
d

o
m

in
a

n
tl
y
 i
n

 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u
s
e

. 
T

o
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

s
it
e

 s
id

e
s
 o

f 
b

o
th

 
S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 F
o

u
r 

E
lm

s
 R

o
a

d
 a

re
 w

e
ll-

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

m
ix

e
d

 t
e

n
u

re
.

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 l
o

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

 a
re

 o
f 

v
a

ry
in

g
 s

ty
le

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 1

9
3

0
’s

 
s
e

m
i-

d
e

ta
c
h

e
d

 v
ill

a
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
6

0
s
/7

0
’s

 d
e

ta
c
h

e
d

 
h

o
u

s
e

s
. 

  
  

T
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 
s
iz

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 s

it
e

 i
s
 1

.8
 h

e
c
ta

re
s
. 

T
h

e
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

ls
o

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 1
.8

 h
e

c
ta

re
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
it
e

. 
 

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
4

0
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

m
ix

 o
f 

ty
p

e
 a

n
d

 t
e

n
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
e
s
 i
s
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

P
ri

v
a
te

 S
a
le

 D
w

e
ll
in

g
s
 

2
 n

o
 4

 b
e

d
 8

 p
e

rs
o

n
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 w

it
h

 s
in

g
le

 g
a

ra
g

e
 

9
 n

o
 4

 b
e

d
 7

 p
e

rs
o

n
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 w

it
h

 s
in

g
le

 g
a

ra
g

e
  

6
 n

o
 3

 b
e

d
 5

 p
e

rs
o

n
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 w

it
h

 s
in

g
le

 g
a

ra
g

e
 

1
 n

o
 2

 b
e

d
 4

 p
e

rs
o

n
 h

o
u
s
e

 w
it
h

 s
in

g
le

 g
a

ra
g

e
 

2
 n

o
 2

 b
e

d
 4

 p
e

rs
o

n
 h

o
u
s
e

s
  
 

2
0

 n
o

. 
to

ta
l 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 U

n
it

s
 –

 S
h

a
re

d
 O

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
4

 n
o

 3
 b

e
d

 5
 p

e
rs

o
n

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 

4
 n

o
 2

 b
e

d
 4

 p
e

rs
o

n
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 

8
 n

o
. 

to
ta

l 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 u

n
it
s
 –

 S
o

c
ia

l 
R

e
n

t 

2
 n

o
 4

 b
e

d
 6

 p
e

rs
o

n
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 

4
 n

o
 3

 b
e

d
 5

 p
e

rs
o

n
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 

6
 n

o
 2

 b
e

d
 4

 p
e

rs
o

n
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 

1
2

 n
o

 t
o

ta
l 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 F

o
o

tp
ri

n
t 

 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
1

4
0

0
 m

²

R
e

fu
s
e

 A
re

a
 

1
2

 m
²

G
a

rd
e

n
 S

to
re

 
R

E
M

O
V

E
D

T
o

ta
l 

A
re

a
 

3
9

9
3

.3
 m

² 

It
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
is

 m
ix

 b
e

s
t 

m
e

e
ts

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 a

re
a

. 
T

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
h

a
v
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 t

w
o

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 u
n

it
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 
th

e
 2

 n
o

 4
 b

e
d

 6
 p

e
rs

o
n

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 (

P
lo

ts
 3

3
 &

 3
4

).
  

Page 69



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

e
s
ig

n

1
2

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

P
la

n
s

/ 
S

k
e

tc
h

e
s

 -
 S

it
e

 L
a

y
o

u
t

Page 70



D
e

s
ig

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

1
3
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 

Page 71



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

e
s
ig

n

1
4

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

Page 72



D
e

s
ig

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

1
5
 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

s

Page 73



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

e
s
ig

n

1
6

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

F
lo

o
r 

p
la

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

  

Page 74



D
e

s
ig

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

1
7
 

A
e

ri
a

l 
P

h
o

to
g

ra
p

h
 o

f 
S

it
e

 a
n

d
 S

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

s
 

Page 75



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

e
s
ig

n

1
8

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

P
h

o
to

s
 

6

Page 76



D
e

s
ig

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

1
9
 

D
e

s
ig

n
 C

o
n

c
e

p
t 

B
lo

c
k

 F
o

o
tp

ri
n

ts
T

h
e

 t
o

ta
l 
fo

o
tp

ri
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
fu

s
e

 a
re

a
 w

ill
 b

e
 3

9
9

3
.3

 m
².

 T
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

, 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 G

re
e

n
 B

e
lt
. 

 

T
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 -
 L

a
y
o

u
t 

o
f 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

n
o

rt
h

-w
e

s
t 

c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

, 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

h
o

s
e

n
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 b

o
th

 v
is

ib
le

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f

o
c
a

l 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 F
o

u
r 

E
lm

s
 R

o
a

d
, 

lo
c
a

lly
 k

n
o

w
n

 
a

s
 S

p
it
a

ls
 C

ro
s
s
. 

T
h

is
 a

re
a

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 t

h
e

 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 h

u
b

 o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

, 
w

it
h

 a
 f

o
c
a

l 
e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t

w
o

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 t

o
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

. 
W

it
h

 
th

e
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 b

ri
d

g
e

 a
 l
it
tl
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
o

w
n

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

th
is

 i
s
 a

 c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

d
 m

a
jo

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

o
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 t
o

w
n

 
c
e

n
tr

e
. 

A
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 i
s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
, 

to
 b

e
 g

a
in

e
d

 b
y
 

e
re

c
ti
n

g
 s

o
m

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 a
rt

 o
n
 t

h
is

 m
a

jo
r 

ro
u

te
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 l
o
c
a

te
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
a

b
le

 l
o
c
a

ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

th
is

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ty
. 

In
 t

h
e

 n
o

rt
h

-w
e

s
t 

c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

, 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 

b
e

h
in

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 t
h

is
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 

m
a

x
im

u
m

 e
x
p

o
s
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 t
o

 
p

a
s
s
in

g
 t

ra
ff
ic

. 
T

h
e

 m
a

in
 f

ro
n

t 
e

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 w
ill

 f
a

c
e

 d
u

e
 

n
o

rt
h

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

a
n

 e
a

s
y
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

 
la

y
o

u
t 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 p

o
in

ts
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
ill

 
b

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 a
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 

s
tr

e
e

ts
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
r 

s
ig

n
a

g
e

 w
ill

 l
in

k
 t

h
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 

to
g

e
th

e
r.

 T
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

s
to

re
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

 o
f 

m
o

d
e

rn
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

it
h

 a
 p

it
c
h

e
d

 r
o

o
f,

 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
x
im

is
e

s
 u

s
e

 o
f 

n
a

tu
ra

l 
s
u

n
lig

h
t 

in
to

 t
h

e
 

fa
c
ili

ty
. 

G
re

e
n

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 a

ir
 s

o
u

rc
e

 h
e

a
t 

p
u

m
p

s
, 

ra
in

 w
a

te
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 p
h

o
to

v
o

lt
a

ic
 c

e
lls

 
a

n
d

/o
r 

s
o

la
r 

p
a

n
e

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

la
c
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

o
u

th
 f

a
c
in

g
 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 i
s
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

, 
h

a
s
 a

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 c

a
rb

o
n

 f
o
o

tp
ri

n
t 

a
n

d
 

lo
w

e
rs

 t
h

e
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

u
s
e

rs
. 

In
te

rn
a

lly
, 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

p
a

c
e

 f
o

r 
a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

u
s
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
n

 
o

p
e

n
 p

la
n

 a
re

a
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
y
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 a
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 

s
p

a
c
e

, 
c
a

fé
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

e
lp

/c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

a
re

a
. 

T
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

s
m

a
ll,

 m
e

d
iu

m
 s

iz
e

d
 

a
n

d
 l
a

rg
e

 f
le

x
ib

le
 r

o
o

m
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 o

n
 a

n
 h

o
u

rl
y
 r

a
te

 b
a

s
is

. 
In

 a
d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

, 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 f
a

it
h

 r
o

o
m

 f
o

r 
u

s
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 B
a

p
ti
s
t 

C
h

u
rc

h
 t

h
a

t 
c
a

n
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 e
x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 v

ia
 f

le
x
ib

le
 w

a
lls

 t
o

 
c
o

p
e

 w
it
h

 l
a
rg

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 

Y
o

u
th

s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 p
re

s
e

n
c
e

 v
ia

 a
 c

o
n

jo
in

e
d

 
Y

o
u

th
 C

lu
b

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
a

 f
o

r 
a

d
u

lt
s
 

w
it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
. 

 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

th
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 a

n
c
ill

a
ry

 
o

ff
ic

e
, 

s
to

ra
g

e
 s

p
a

c
e

, 
k
it
c
h

e
n

 a
n

d
 t

o
ile

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

M
o

re
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 u
s
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
t 

a
 l
a

te
r 

d
a

te
.

A
t 

th
e

 b
a

c
k
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 g

a
rd

e
n

 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ta
in

 s
e

a
ti
n
g

 a
re

a
s
. 

T
re

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
h

ru
b

s
 

w
ill

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 s
h

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 

a
llo

w
 u

s
e

rs
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a

re
a

 f
o

r 
b

re
a

k
s
.

A
t 

th
e

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 t

h
e

 v
is

u
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
re

a
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

in
im

is
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 r
o

a
d

 
a

n
d

 F
o

u
r 

E
lm

s
 R

o
a

d
 v

ia
 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
. 

T
h

e
 l
in

e
a

r 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
a

y
o

u
t 

o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 a
s
 i
t 

a
llo

w
s
 f

o
r 

b
u

ild
in

g
 m

a
s
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

b
ro

k
e

n
 u

p
 b

y
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
la

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 

a
lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 r

o
a

d
 f

ro
n

ts
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

it
s
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 e

d
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 G

re
e

n
 B

e
lt
. 

 

F
u

rt
h

e
rm

o
re

, 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
fo

r 
a

 p
u

b
lic

 s
q

u
a

re
 s

p
a

c
e

 
o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
e

n
s
it
y
 f

o
r 

it
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

v
a

n
d

a
lis

m
 a

n
d

 a
n

ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

to
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
. 

In
s
te

a
d

 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
p

la
c
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 s

e
c
u

re
 g

a
rd

e
n

 
a

re
a

 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

a
c
k
 o

f 
th

e
 f
a

c
ili

ty
. 
 

T
h

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
o

rt
s
 p

it
c
h

e
s
 a

n
d

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

a
s
t 

(a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 n
o

t 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
) 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

o
u

td
o

o
r 

s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 o

u
td

o
o

r 
re

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

w
h

ile
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n
g

 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ty
. 

T
h

e
 m

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
e

s
t 

to
w

a
rd

s
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t

h
e

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

re
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

e
 

e
a

s
te

rn
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

 t
o
 b

e
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e
d

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

n
e
d

 
u

p
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 r
e

m
o

v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 v

a
c
a

n
t 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
. 

It
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 l
a

y
o

u
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 
g

re
a

te
r 

im
p

a
c
t 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

o
p

e
n

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 G

re
e

n
 B

e
lt
, 

b
u

t 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
s
 t

o
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

la
n
d

 i
n

 
G

re
e

n
 B

e
lt
s
.

T
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
, 
b

y
 t

h
e

ir
 n

a
tu

re
 a

re
 m

o
re

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
o

u
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

a
c
t 

th
a

n
 h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

s
 

s
m

a
lle

r 
u

n
it
s
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
d

 b
y
 g

a
rd

e
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
n

c
ill

a
ry

 h
a

rd
 

s
u

rf
a

c
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 g
a

p
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 n

e
w

 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 h

e
lp

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 f

o
r 

s
o

ft
 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
. 

S
c

a
le

 o
f 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

T
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 o
c
c
u

p
y
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

, 
a

re
 a

t 
a

 m
a

x
im

u
m

 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 i
n

 h
e

ig
h

t.
 T

h
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

s
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
is

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

h
e

ig
h

t 
o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 s
it
e
. 

 

T
h

e
s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 i
n

te
n

d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
is

 
c
o

rn
e

r 
b

y
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 p

u
b

lic
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

a
rt

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 a

im
 o

f 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

fo
c
a

l 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
le

g
ib

ili
ty

 o
n

 t
h

e
 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

o
u

r 
E

lm
s
 a

n
d

 S
ta

ti
o
n

 
R

o
a

d
. 

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 p

u
b

lic
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

a
rt

 w
ill

 
ta

k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 t
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
S

p
it
a

ls
 C

ro
s
s
, 

a
 p

la
c
e

 o
f 

re
fu

g
e

, 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

o
p

e
n

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
s
id

e
/G

re
e

n
 B

e
lt
. 

 

B
y
 l
im

it
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t

o
 n

o
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 t

w
o

 
s
to

ri
e

s
, 

th
e

re
b

y
, 

re
s
p

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 h
e

ig
h

t 
o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
, 

it
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

re
 

m
o

re
 r

e
s
p

e
c
tf

u
l 
to

 t
h

e
 G

re
e

n
 b

e
lt
 a

n
d
 i
t’
s
 v

is
u

a
l 

a
m

e
n

it
ie

s
 w

h
ile

 s
e

c
u

ri
n
g

 v
is

u
a

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
a

n
d

 a
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
. 

  

A
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e
 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

f 
a

 m
id

 2
0

th
 

c
e

n
tu

ry
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 g
ro

u
n

d
s
 w

it
h

 a
 

b
u

ild
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 i
n

 i
ts

 c
e

n
tr

e
 w

it
h

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
la

y
in

g
 

g
ro

u
n

d
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

u
ts

id
e

. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 c

o
n

s
is

t 
o
f 

s
m

a
lle

r 
s
iz

e
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
 u

n
it
s
 

b
e

in
g

 p
re

d
o
m

in
a

n
tl
y
 s

e
m

i-
d

e
ta

c
h

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
ta

c
h
e

d
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
, 

e
v
e

n
ly

 d
is

p
e

rs
e

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

. 
T

h
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 i
s
 i
n

h
e

re
n

tl
y
 a

 l
a

rg
e

r 
b

u
ild

in
g

 b
y
 

th
e

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
if
fe

ri
n

g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 s

in
g

le
 

s
to

re
y
 i
n

 h
e

ig
h

t 
w

it
h

 a
 F

o
o

t 
P

ri
n

t 
o

f 
1

4
0

0
 m

² 
is

 a
 l
it
tl
e

 
la

rg
e

r 
th

a
n

 o
n

e
 t

h
ir

d
 t

h
e
 s

iz
e

 o
f 

th
e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h
o

o
l 

b
u

ild
in

g
.

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rk
in

g
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 s
e

rv
e

d
 b

y
 a

 n
e

w
 

v
e

h
ic

u
la

r 
a

n
d

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

o
a
d

 f
ro

m
 F

o
u

r 
E

lm
s
 

R
o

a
d

. 
T

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 m

a
in

 e
n

tr
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
w

ill
 

b
e

 c
lo

s
e

d
 u

p
. 

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
 a

re
a

s
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 2

0
m

p
h

 s
p

e
e

d
 r

e
s
tr

a
in

e
d

 z
o
n

e
. 

F
o

o
tw

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 p
a

th
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
g

re
g

a
te

d
 

Page 77



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

e
s
ig

n

2
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 w

it
h

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 
c
ro

s
s
o

v
e

r 
p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

. 
N

e
w

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
e
s
 f

ro
m

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 
s
o

u
th

e
rn

 e
n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

. 
A

 n
e

w
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

a
lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ri

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

 o
n

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 
F

o
u

r 
E

lm
s
 R

o
a

d
 l
in

k
in

g
 u

p
 w

it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 

c
ro

s
s
in

g
 o

n
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
. 

A
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 e
n

tr
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 l
e
a

d
in

g
 e

a
s
tw

a
rd

s
 

to
 m

e
e

t 
a

n
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

rf
lo

w
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 A
T

C
 s

it
e

 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

.
P

a
rk

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

in
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

tr
a

ff
ic

 m
o

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 h

o
u

s
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 
a

re
a

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 s
o

ft
 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
 

tu
rn

in
g

 a
re

a
. 

In
 t

o
ta

l 
4

8
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

fo
rm

a
l 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

 f
o

u
r 

d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 D

D
A

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 

n
e

a
r 

th
e

 m
a

in
 e

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 p
lu

s
 o

n
e

 s
p

a
c
e

 f
o

r 
a

 m
in

ib
u

s
. 

A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
o

v
e

rf
lo

w
 p

a
rk

in
g

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
e

rm
it
te

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 A

T
C

 s
it
e

. 
C

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

1
0

 

b
ic

y
c
le

s
 a

re
 t
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 c
lo

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 
A

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 r

e
fu

s
e

 s
to

re
 w

ill
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

re
a

 e
it
h

e
r 

a
s
 a

n
 i
n

te
g

ra
l 
g

a
ra

g
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 s
p

a
c
e

. 
V

is
it
o

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 
fo

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u

n
it
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
u

rt
ila

g
e
. 
In

 t
o

ta
l,
 i
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 1

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 o
r 

in
te

g
ra

l 
s
p

a
c
e

 a
n

d
 1

 v
is

it
o

r 
s
p

a
c
e

 p
e

r 
u
n

it
. 

A
c

c
e

s
s

T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

in
te

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

is
 t
o

 
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
te

 a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 a

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
. 

In
 d

o
in

g
 s

o
, 

th
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

h
a

s
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 t
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ilt

 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
t 
is

 u
s
a

b
le

 a
n
d

 a
p

p
e

a
lin

g
 t
o

 
e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
a

g
e

, 
a

b
ili

ty
 o

r 
c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

. 
 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 s

e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 w

it
h
 

in
te

rn
a

l 
a

n
d

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 a

n
d

 
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
u
n

c
il,

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
 i
n

 
o

rd
e

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

g
o

o
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
. 
A

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
ill

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 a
 G

a
te

w
a

y
 f

a
c
ili

ty
, 

th
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
 a

s
p

e
c
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 G
a

te
w

a
y
’s

 D
e

s
ig

n
 B

ri
e

f 
w

h
ic

h
 

g
o

e
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 a
n
d

 D
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 A

c
t 

(D
D

A
) 

(1
9

9
5

) 
a

n
d

 
D

D
A

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 2

0
0

5
. 

 

T
h

e
 s

it
e

 t
o

p
o

g
ra

p
h

y
 l
e

n
d

s
 i
ts

e
lf
 w

e
ll 

to
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
s
 s

u
c
h

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 f

e
w

 l
im

it
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 i
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 f

u
lly

 D
D

A
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

  

T
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

e
a

c
h

 e
n

tr
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e

 a
 

le
v
e

l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
o

in
t 
o

f 
e

n
tr

y
 a

n
d

 n
o

 s
te

p
s
 o

r 
ra

m
p

s
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 f
a

c
ili

ty
 d

u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 
le

v
e

l 
n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

. 
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 c
o

m
p

ly
 f

u
lly

 w
it
h

 
P

a
rt

 M
 o

f 
th

e
 B

u
ild

in
g

 R
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
in

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 l
o
o

p
s
 i
n

 a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 r

o
o

m
s
, 

m
a

in
 f

o
y
e

r 
a

n
d

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 a

re
a

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 h
a

rd
 o

f 
h

e
a

ri
n

g
.

T
h

e
 B

2
0

2
6

 a
n

d
 B

2
0

2
7

 b
o

th
 s

tr
a

d
d

le
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

 a
n
d

 a
re

 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 c
o

rr
id

o
rs

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 b
u

s
 r

o
u

te
s
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
p

u
b

lic
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 r
o
u

te
s
 s

e
rv

in
g
 t

h
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 B
u

s
 s

to
p

s
 e

x
is

t 
to

 b
o

th
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 

a
n

d
 F

o
u

r 
E

lm
s
 R

o
a

d
. 

 T
h

e
 s

it
e

 h
a

s
 g

o
o

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 

b
o

th
 r

o
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 r
o

u
te

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

n
 l
in

k
 t
o

 
a

ll 
a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

tr
y
 p

o
in

ts
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

th
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 n
e

w
 

p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 f
o

o
tp

a
th

 t
o

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

th
is

 w
ill

 h
e
lp

 l
in

k
 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 

to
w

n
.

V
e

h
ic

u
la

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

it
e

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

s
 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
o

f 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 2

9
 J

u
ly

 
2

0
0

9
, 

R
e

f 
S

E
/0

7
/0

1
9

3
2

/F
U

L
, 

b
e

in
g

 f
ro

m
 F

o
u

r 
E

lm
s
 

R
o

a
d

.

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

in
g

 
A

s
 s

ta
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
fo

u
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 b

a
y
s
 f
o

r 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 

d
ri

v
e

rs
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
 a

n
d

 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

m
p

le
 p

a
rk

in
g

 f
o
r 

th
e

 r
e

m
a

in
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 u
s
e

rs
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 f

o
r 

lo
a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 u

n
lo

a
d

in
g

. 
 

S
ig

n
a

g
e

S
ig

n
a

g
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 

e
x
te

rn
a

lly
 w

ill
 m

e
e

t 
D

D
A

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 
w

h
e

re
v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 

w
ri

tt
e
n

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 w
it
h

 p
ic

to
g

ra
m

s
 o

r 
s
y
m

b
o

ls
. 

B
ra

ill
e

 
s
ig

n
a

g
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

te
rn

a
lly

 a
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
 

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 a
n

d
 C

y
c

le
 

T
h

e
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
n

tr
a

n
c
e

s
 a

re
 l
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 C
y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

. 
D

u
e

 t
o

 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
u

s
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 c

lo
s
e

 p
ro

x
im

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 
s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a
re

a
s
, 

e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

a
re

 a
ff

o
rd

e
d

 f
o

r 
p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 a
n

d
 c

y
c
le

 t
ri

p
s
. 
 

A
p

p
ro

a
c

h
/E

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
E

n
tr

a
n

c
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
e

v
e

l,
 h

a
v
e

 f
lo

o
ri

n
g

 o
f 

s
lip

 r
e

s
is

ta
n

t 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 a

n
d

 b
e

 k
e

p
t 

fr
e
e

 f
ro

m
 t

ri
p

p
in

g
 h

a
z
a

rd
s
. 
T

h
e

 
e

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 d
o
o

rs
 a

re
 w

id
e

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
o

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 a
 

w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir

.

D
o

o
r 

fu
rn

it
u

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
t 

in
 c

o
lo

u
r 

a
n

d
 l
u

m
in

a
n

c
e

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

o
o

r.

A
d

e
q

u
a

te
 c

o
lo

u
r 

a
n

d
 t

o
n

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

a
s
t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 W

a
ll,

 
F

lo
o

r,
 C

e
ili

n
g

s
 a

n
d

 D
o

o
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
. 
 

C
ir

c
u

la
ti

o
n

T
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 s
e

le
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 f
o

r 
fi
n

is
h

e
s
 w

ill
 

fo
llo

w
 G

a
te

w
a

y
’s

 D
e

s
ig

n
 b

ri
e

f 
w

h
ic

h
 g

o
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 

b
e

y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 g
u
id

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
w

id
th

s
 o

f 
c
o
rr

id
o

rs
 a

n
d

 d
o

o
rs

, 
m

a
n

o
e

u
v
ri

n
g

 s
p

a
c
e

s
, 

s
u

rf
a

c
e

 f
in

is
h

e
s
 t

o
 w

a
lls

, 
fl
o

o
rs

 a
n

d
 c

e
ili

n
g

s
, 
c
o

lo
u

r 
a

n
d

 l
u

m
in

a
n

c
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
s
t 
a

n
d

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
. 
  

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 
T

h
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 f
u

rn
it
u

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
lly

 D
D

A
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

a
n

d
 

th
is

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
m

o
n

g
 o

th
e

rs
 a

 r
e

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 c

o
u

n
te

r 
w

it
h

 l
o

w
e

r 
c
o

u
n

te
r 

to
p

, 
k
it
c
h

e
n

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

 h
e

ig
h

t 
a

d
ju

s
ta

b
le

 c
o

u
n

te
rs

 a
n

d
 l
o

w
-l

e
v
e

l 
lig

h
t 

s
w

it
c
h

e
s
 a

n
d

 
s
o

c
k
e

ts
 a

n
d
 a

 f
u

lly
 f

it
te

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 p

la
c
e

s
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 w

it
h

 
a

d
u

lt
 s

iz
e

d
 w

a
ll 

m
o

u
n

te
d

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 b

e
n

c
h

 a
n

d
 c

e
ili

n
g

 
tr

a
c
k
 h

o
is

t.
  

E
v

a
c

u
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 M
e

a
n

s
 o

f 
E

s
c

a
p

e
 

In
 a

n
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
, 

a
ll 

u
s
e
rs

 w
ill

 e
v
a

c
u
a

te
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 f

ir
e

 e
x
it
 d

o
o

rs
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 d
o

o
rs

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

le
v
e

l 
e

x
it
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 e
a

s
y
 e

s
c
a

p
e

. 
 

A
n

 a
la

rm
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

s
ta

lle
d

 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 u
n

it
 t

o
 

c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 P
a

rt
 B

 o
f 

th
e

 B
u

ild
in

g
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
. 
 

F
ir

e
 e

n
g

in
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

a
c
h

 a
n

y
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 s
it
e

 f
ro

m
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

. 
  
  

  
  

  
  

L
a

n
d

s
c

a
p

in
g

A
 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
y
 L

lo
y
d

 
B

o
re

 a
n

d
 i
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 i
n
 m

o
re

 d
e

ta
il 

in
 t

h
e

 L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 
A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
a

n
d

 E
c
o

lo
g

y
 S

c
o

p
in

g
 S

u
rv

e
y
. 

In
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
, 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

ill
 r

e
ta

in
 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 m

a
tu

re
 o

a
k
 t

re
e

s
 

a
n

d
 h

e
d

g
e

ro
w

s
 e

x
c
e

p
t 

w
h

e
re

 g
a

p
s
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 p

o
in

ts
. 

H
e

d
g

e
 p

la
n

ti
n

g
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 

Page 78



D
e

s
ig

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

2
1
 

re
in

s
ta

te
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
n

e
w

e
d

 w
h

e
re

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
, 

a
n

d
 

p
la

n
ti
n

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 n

e
w

 s
tr

e
e

t 
fr

o
n

ta
g

e
s
. 

C
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
re

a
s
 w

ill
 u

ti
lis

e
 s

e
q

u
e
n

c
e

s
 o

f 
s
u

rf
a

c
e

 
te

x
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

lo
u

rs
 a

n
d
 s

o
ft

 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
. 

P
la

n
ti
n

g
 

w
ill

 u
s
e

 n
a

ti
v
e

 s
p

e
c
ie

s
 o

f 
p

la
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
re

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
o
s
te

r 
d

iv
e

rs
e

 h
a

b
it
a

ts
 f

o
r 

w
ild

lif
e

.

S
u

m
m

a
ry

It
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 m

ix
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 t

y
p

e
 a

n
d

 
te

n
u

re
 b

e
tt

e
r 

m
e

e
ts

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
tu

a
l 
u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

b
y
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 m
o

re
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 u

s
e

r 
g

ro
u

p
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

, 
e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 
is

 n
o

 h
a

rm
 o

n
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
n

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 G

re
e

n
 B

e
lt
. 

C
o

n
te

x
t

T
h

e
 s

it
e

 l
ie

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

ta
ti
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 F

o
u

r 
E

lm
s
 R

o
a

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

p
it
a

ls
 C

ro
s
s
 a

re
a

 o
f 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
, 

ro
u

g
h

ly
 5

-1
0

 m
in

u
te

s
 w

a
lk

in
g

 d
is

ta
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 
c
e

n
tr

e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
w

n
. 

S
p

it
a

ls
 C

ro
s
s
 i
s
 a

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 a

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

s
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 i
n
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 a

rt
. 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 h

a
s
 

tw
o

 m
a

in
lin

e
 s

ta
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
o

c
a

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 c

lo
s
e

 
w

a
lk

in
g

 d
is

ta
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

. 
E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 S
ta

ti
o

n
, 
to

 
th

e
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 L

o
n

d
o

n
. 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 T

o
w

n
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 

O
x
te

d
, 

U
c
k
fi
e

ld
, 

R
e

d
h

ill
 a

n
d

 T
o

n
b

ri
d
g

e
. 

 

T
h

e
 s

it
e

 i
s
 b

o
u

n
d

 b
y
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 w
e

s
t 

a
n

d
 

F
o

u
r 

E
lm

s
 R

o
a

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
o

rt
h

. 
S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 (

B
2

0
2

6
) 

c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

tr
a

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 r

o
u

te
 t

o
 a

n
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 t
o

w
n

 o
f 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
. 

T
h
e

 s
o

u
th

-w
e

s
t 

c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
it
e
 i
s
 b

o
u

n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 r
a

ilw
a

y
 

e
m

b
a

n
k
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

 s
it
e

 a
b

u
ts

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
o

p
e

n
 l
a

n
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 s

o
u

th
 a

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

a
s
t.
  

T
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

re
 l
o
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 
o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

. 
T

h
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 b
u

ilt
 i
n

 t
h

e
 1

9
6

0
’s

 a
n

d
 

d
is

p
la

y
 l
it
tl
e

 a
rc

h
it
e

c
tu

ra
l 
m

e
ri

t.
  

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 o

f 
o

n
e

 a
n

d
 

tw
o

 s
to

re
y
s
 i
n

 h
e

ig
h

t.
 I

t 
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 n
e

w
 

h
o

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
re

 l
o
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

n
o

rt
h

-w
e

s
t 

s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
it
e

 c
lo

s
e

 t
o

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

. 
W

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

re
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

e
d

 t
o

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

, 
th

is
 w

ill
 m

e
e
t 

th
e

 e
x
is

ti
n
g

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
o
p

e
n

 l
a

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

s
o

u
th

 a
n

d
 e

a
s
t.

  
  

S
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
s
c
re

e
n

 p
la

n
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

tr
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 
h

e
d

g
in

g
 e

x
is

t 
a

lo
n

g
 t

h
e

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 
h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
. 

M
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 t

re
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
is

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

re
 

m
a

tu
re

. 
In

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
is

, 
a
 T

re
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 a

n
d

 T
re

e
 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
c
c
o

m
p
a

n
y
 t

h
is

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

w
o

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 v

e
h

ic
u

la
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
e

s
 

in
to

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 b
o

th
 t

a
k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 F
o

u
r 

E
lm

s
 R

o
a

d
. 

T
h

e
 m

a
in

 e
n

tr
a

n
c
e

 l
e

a
d

s
 s

o
u

th
w

a
rd

s
 t

o
 a

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 

h
a

rd
s
ta

n
d

in
g

 u
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
 o

f 
c
a

rs
. 

T
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
e

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

 l
ie

s
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 F
ir

c
ro

ft
 W

a
y
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

p
o

rt
s
 f

ie
ld

s
 a

n
d

 A
ir

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

C
o

rp
s
 (

A
T

C
) 

h
u

ts
. 

T
h

e
 s

it
e

 i
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 f

la
t.

 

A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
in

 
2

0
0

2
, 

s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o
l 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
s
e

d
 

b
y
 v

a
ri

o
u

s
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h
e

s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
 

A
ll

 S
o

rt
s

 –
 A

ft
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
h

o
lid

a
y
s
 

c
lu

b
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

 a
g

e
d

 5
-1

5
; 

E
v

o
lv

e
 –

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
; 

O
ld

e
r 

L
if

e
s

ty
le

 G
ro

u
p

 –
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
ld

e
rl

y
 

m
e

e
ts

 o
n

c
e

 a
 w

e
e

k
; 

K
C

C
 Y

o
u

th
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 –
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 o

p
e

ra
te

s
 f

o
u

r 
ti
m

e
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
 a

ft
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

lu
s
 s

o
m

e
 

w
e

e
k
e

n
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
h
o

lid
a

y
s
. 

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 

W
o

rk
e

r 
a

n
d

 h
is

 b
u

rs
a

r 
ta

k
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

fa
c
ili

ty
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
K

C
C

; 

K
C

C
 A

d
u

lt
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 –

 A
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
 

c
la

s
s
e
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 I

T
, 

d
a

n
c
e

, 
y
o

g
a

 a
n

d
 

c
ra

ft
s
; 

E
d

e
n

 C
h

u
rc

h
 –

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 u

s
e

s
 a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

t 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l;
 

F
a

m
il

y
 W

e
lf

a
re

 A
s

s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 –

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

h
a

v
e

 t
w

o
 l
a

rg
e

 r
o

o
m

s
 a

n
d

 m
e

e
t 

5
 d

a
y
s
 a

 
w

e
e

k
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
fa

m
ili

e
s
; 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 –
 U

s
e

 a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

t 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l;
 

T
h

e
 a

re
a

 s
u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 t
h
e

 s
it
e

 i
s
 p

re
d

o
m

in
a

n
tl
y
 i
n

 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u
s
e

. 
T

o
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

s
it
e

 s
id

e
s
 o

f 
b

o
th

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 

R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 F

o
u

r 
E

lm
s
 R

o
a

d
 a

re
 w

e
ll-

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
re

a
s
 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

m
ix

e
d

 t
e

n
u

re
. 

  

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 l
o

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

 a
re

 o
f 

v
a

ry
in

g
 s

ty
le

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 1

9
3

0
’s

 s
e
m

i-
d

e
ta

c
h

e
d

 v
ill

a
s
 a

n
d

 1
9

6
0
s
/7

0
’s

 d
e

ta
c
h

e
d

 h
o

u
s
e

s
. 
  

  

Page 79



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

2
2

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

Page 80



P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

2
3
 

Page 81



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

2
4

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

Page 82



P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

2
5
 

Page 83



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

2
6

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 T
e

a
m

 
D

e
ta

ils
 a

re
 g

iv
e

n
 b

e
lo

w
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ill
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

  
T

h
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
te

a
m

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p

ly
 

c
h

a
in

.

J
o

n
T

h
is

tl
e

th
w

a
it

e
 

P
ro

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

J
o

n
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
o

n
 

n
e

w
 b

u
ild

, 
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 l
is

te
d

 
b

u
ild

in
g

 s
c
h
e

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
4

 y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 

h
a

s
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

m
a

n
y
 m

o
d

e
rn

 
m

e
th

o
d

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
. 

H
e

 h
a

s
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

it
e

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 J
o

n
 w

ill
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

e
a

m
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
s
ta

ff
, 

s
u

rv
e

y
o

rs
 

a
n

d
 s

it
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
. 
 

C
h

ri
s

 D
u

n
s

te
r 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

C
h

ri
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

 a
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
ro

le
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
d

u
s
tr

y
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
y
 y

e
a

rs
, 

o
n

e
 o

f 
h

is
 m

o
s
t 

re
c
e

n
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 h
a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 c

o
n

c
re

te
 

fr
a

m
e

s
 u

p
 t

o
 7

 s
to

re
y
s
 w

it
h

 l
a

rg
e

 
b

a
s
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
C

h
ri

s
 w

h
o

 l
iv

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
a

re
a

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 
h

a
d

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

ti
m

b
e

r 
fr

a
m

e
, 

lig
h

t 
w

e
ig

h
t 

s
te

e
l 

fr
a

m
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a

l 
m

e
th

o
d

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
. 

 
H

e
 h

a
s
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

b
o

th
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 i
s
 a

n
 a

s
s
e

t 
to

 a
n

y
 t

e
a

m
. 

 

S
te

v
e

n
 S

m
it

h
 

S
it

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

S
te

v
e

n
 S

m
it
h

 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

d
 s

it
e

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

w
h

o
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 s

in
c
e

 l
e

a
v
in

g
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 1
9
7

3
, 

w
it
h

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 
fo

rm
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
. 
 

H
e

 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

ru
n

n
in

g
 s

it
e
s
 i
n

 a
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
m

a
n

n
e

r 
a

n
d

 h
e

 h
a

s
 a

 g
o

o
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 t

e
a
m

 s
p

ir
it
 w

it
h

 h
is

 
c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 a

 p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 h
is

 
w

o
rk

. 
H

e
 h

a
s
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 K

e
n

t 
a

re
a

 h
a

v
in

g
 

s
p

e
n

t 
m

u
c
h

 o
f 

h
is

 c
a

re
e

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 l
iv

in
g

 l
o

c
a

lly
. 

W
a

rr
e

n
 S

p
a

rk
e

s

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

W
a

rr
e

n
 S

p
a

rk
e

s
 h

a
s
 g

a
in

e
d

 w
id

e
 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
is

s
u

e
s
 

s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

H
is

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

s
 a

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
c
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r 

h
a

s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 n
o

t 
o

n
ly

 a
 t

h
o

ro
u

g
h

 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
 o

f 
d

e
s
ig

n
 

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

, 
re

g
u

la
to

ry
 b

o
d

ie
s
, 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s
. 

W
a

rr
e

n
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

k
e

e
p

in
g

 u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
 w

it
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 m

a
rk

e
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 
re

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 n

e
w

 p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 
a

n
d

 m
e

th
o

d
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
C

o
d

e
 f

o
r 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 H
o

m
e

s
, 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 L
e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
n

y
 c

lie
n

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

W
a

rr
e

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

t 
C

o
d

e
 L

e
v
e

ls
 3

, 
4

 a
n

d
 5

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

P
a

s
s
iv

H
a

u
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 

  

A
ll

a
n

 O
’B

ri
e

n
 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

A
lla

n
 O

’B
ri

e
n

 o
v
e

r 
1

2
 y

e
a

rs
 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 f

o
r 

a
 m

a
in

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r.
 D

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

is
 t

im
e

 A
lla

n
 h

a
s
 

w
o

rk
e

d
 o

n
 m

a
n

y
 n

e
w

-b
u

ild
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l,
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
w

it
h

 
v
a

ry
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

v
a

lu
e

s
. 
 

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a

s
s

id
y
 

S
e

n
io

r 
S

u
rv

e
y
o

r 

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a

s
s
id

y
, 

w
h

o
 l
iv

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
a

re
a

, 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 s

in
c
e

 
1

9
9

7
, 

h
e

 h
a
s
 g

a
in

e
d

 b
o

th
 p

re
 &

 p
o

s
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

, 
a

ls
o

 h
e

 h
a

s
 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t,
 i
n

te
ri

m
 

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

c
o

s
t/

v
a

lu
e

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
o

n
-s

it
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
H

e
 h

a
s
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 
o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 b
o

th
 n

e
w

 b
u

ild
 a

n
d

 
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t.

M
ik

e
 G

e
n

t 

M
e

c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
&

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

A
ft

e
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

s
 a

 p
lu

m
b

in
g

 a
n

d
 

h
e

a
ti
n

g
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r,

 M
ik

e
 G

e
n

t 
m

o
v
e

d
 

in
to

 d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 e
s
ti
m

a
ti
n

g
. 

H
is

 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 h
a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 h
e

 w
o

rk
s
 o

n
 a

re
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
ri

c
e

 t
o

 s
u

it
 

b
o

th
 t

h
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

is
s
u

e
s
.

P
a

u
l 

D
y
s

te
r 

 

H
e

a
lt

h
 &

 S
a

fe
ty

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

P
a

u
l 
D

y
s
te

r 
h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 

w
it
h

 u
p

 t
o

 £
1

5
0

m
 t

u
rn

o
v
e

r 
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 
ra

n
g

in
g

 f
ro

m
 £

5
0

k
 u

p
 t

o
 £

5
0

m
. 

H
e

 h
a

s
 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 1

0
 y

e
a

rs
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
w

o
rk

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
, 

P
a

u
l 
h

a
s
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 
s
a

fe
ty

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
o

u
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 

L
y
n

n
e

 B
e

ll
 

R
e

s
id

e
n

t 
L

ia
is

o
n

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

L
y
n

n
e

 B
e

ll 
h

a
s
 l
e

d
 b

o
th

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
lia

is
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 o
n

 a
 w

id
e

 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
n

e
w

 b
u

ild
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
. 

A
n

d
 a

n
 R

L
M

 f
o

r 
1

0
 y

e
a

rs
, 

L
y
n

n
e

 h
a

s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 o
n

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 p
a

rt
n

e
ri

n
g

 p
ilo

t 
w

it
h

 1
,5

0
0

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 s
h

e
 w

o
rk

e
d

 i
n

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l.
 L

y
n

n
e

 i
s
 h

e
a

v
ily

 
in

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 a
ll 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n

t/
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

S
te

v
e

 N
a

s
tr

i

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
C

a
re

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

S
te

v
e

 N
a

s
tr

i 
h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

in
d

u
s
tr

y
 3

5
 y

e
a

rs
, 

1
1

 o
f 

th
e

m
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 

h
is

 o
w

n
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 
d

e
a

lin
g

 d
ir

e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 

H
is

 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

 i
s
 a

s
 a

 t
im

e
-s

e
rv

e
d

 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

 c
a

rp
e

n
te

r-
jo

in
e

r.
 S

te
v
e

’s
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 
b

o
th

 n
e

w
 b

u
ild

 a
n

d
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 c
o

v
e

ri
n
g

 
b

o
th

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

s
 t

o
 o

u
r 

fa
s
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
.

Page 84



C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

2
7
 

Page 85



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

2
8

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

IS
O

 9
0

0
1

 /
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 

Page 86



C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

2
9
 

Page 87



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

3
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

P
la

n
n

in
g

 s
h
a

p
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
la

c
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

e
 a

n
d

 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
 w

e
 l
iv

e
 i
n

. 
It

 p
la

y
s
 a

 k
e

y
 r

o
le

 i
n

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 w

id
e

r 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l,
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
a

n
d

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

T
h

e
 l
e

g
a

c
y
 f

ro
m

 a
n

y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 c

ri
ti
c
a
lly

 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t;

 n
o

t 
ju

s
t 

th
e

 n
e

w
 h

o
u

s
e

s
, 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
o

ff
ic

e
s
 

a
n

d
 g

re
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 t

h
e

 s
k
ill

s
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r,
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
n

te
g

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
in

im
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

 

A
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 t
o

ta
l 
p

ro
je

c
t 
a

t 
E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 t
h

e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

s
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d

, 
a

s
 t

h
e

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 w
e

 w
o

u
ld

 m
a

k
e

 a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

: 

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 –
 s

k
ill

s
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
 

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 c
re

a
ti
n

g
 i
n

te
g

ra
ti
o

n
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
jo

b
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
 

 
m

in
im

is
in

g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

S
k

il
ls

 t
ra

n
s

fe
r 

O
rb

it
 a

n
d

 H
ill

 a
re

 a
lr

e
a

d
y
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 j
o

b
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 

e
x
p

lo
re

d
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 j
o

in
tl
y
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 w

e
 a

re
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r.
 

B
o

th
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

e
v
e

ry
th

in
g

 f
ro

m
: 

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 s
k
ill

s
 t

o
 g

e
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

to
 

w
o

rk
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 C

V
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

 
s
h

o
rt

-t
e

rm
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

 
c
ra

ft
 b

a
s
e

d
 N

V
Q

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 

 
tr

a
d

e
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
  

W
h

ils
t 

th
e

 r
e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 s

m
a

ll 
s
iz

e
 o

f 
th

is
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
n

ly
 c

re
a

te
s
 l
im

it
e

d
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 p

u
t 

a
 c

o
h

e
re

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
w

e
 w

o
u

ld
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

to
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 t
h

e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

o
u

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 l
o

c
a

lly
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 c

re
a

te
 a

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
o

s
e

 w
it
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
k
ill

s
 c

a
n

 m
o

v
e

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
s
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 m
o

v
e

s
 o

n
. 

H
ill

 h
a

s
 a

p
p
o

in
te

d
 a

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
r,

 
C

o
n

s
ig

n
 C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 S

k
ill

s
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s
, 

a
s
 o

u
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
re

d
 f

a
c
ili

ta
to

r 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
p
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

H
ill

’s
 

C
ra

ft
 A

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 (

C
A

T
S

).
 

C
A

T
S

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

ra
ft

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n

ts
 v

ia
 a

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 
th

e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 N
V

Q
 L

e
v
e

l 
2

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h
 t

h
e

 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 f

le
x
ib

le
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
n

t’
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

k
ill

 s
e

t.
 

T
h

is
 f

o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
g

ro
u

p
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
. 

O
u

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 d

iv
e

rs
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 
o

n
ly

 t
a

k
e

 f
ir

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
, 

th
e

 a
g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 c
a

n
 v

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 1

6
 t

o
 

2
3

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

y
 c

o
n

s
is

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
 

c
o

m
in

g
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
ir

s
t 

ti
m

e
, 

o
r 

in
d

e
e

d
 

d
is

p
la

c
e

d
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 u
n

fo
rt

u
n

a
te

ly
 b

e
e

n
 

m
a

d
e

 r
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

t 
o

r 
lo

s
t 

th
e

ir
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
v
a

ry
in

g
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
. 

In
 t

h
e

 f
ir

s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

 C
o

n
s
ig

n
 i
s
 l
ia

is
in

g
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
c
o

lle
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 

c
a

n
d

id
a

te
s
, 
th

e
s
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
re

 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

e
d

 b
y
 

C
o

n
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
rt

lis
te

d
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 
b

e
in

g
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 t
o

 H
ill

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 t
h

e
ir

 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

S
C

S
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
lt
im

a
te

ly
 a

 
c
o

m
p

e
te

n
c
y
 p

a
s
s
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
m

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
ir

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
. 

T
h

e
 e

n
d

 g
o

a
l 
o

f 
C

A
T

S
 i
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 N
V

Q
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 a
s
 

th
is

 i
s
 p

re
d

o
m

in
a

te
ly

 a
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
, 

o
u

r 
in

te
n

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t

o
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

 
fr

o
m

 f
u

ll 
ti
m

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 H
ill

 i
n

to
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 o

u
r 

s
u

p
p

ly
 c

h
a

in
. 
T

h
e

 d
e

ta
ils

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 
fu

lly
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
. 

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
o

u
ld

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 b
e

s
p

o
k
e

 b
u

t 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
: 

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
d

a
n

g
e

rs
 o

f 
b
u

ild
in

g
 s

it
e

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 v

is
it
s
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

e
a

m
, 

a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 p

o
s
te

r 
c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
s
it
e

 h
o

a
rd

in
g

 b
o

a
rd

s
. 

 
E

a
rl

y
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
s
 b

e
fo

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
ta

rt
s
 t

o
 m

a
p

 
th

e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
s
it
e

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
o

n
e

 t
h

is
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 s

it
e
 

fe
a

tu
re

s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n

t 
s
p

e
c
ie

s
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

 
 M

y
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

 –
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
v
is

it
s
 b

u
ilt

 a
ro

u
n

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
. 

O
u

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
t 

C
a

m
b

o
u

rn
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
s
, 
ta

lk
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

u
r 

a
rc

h
it
e

c
t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 d

e
s
ig

n
in

g
 a

 n
e

w
 t

o
w

n
 (

fo
r 

o
ld

e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
) 

a
n

d
 d

ra
w

in
g

 a
n

 i
d

e
a

l 
h

o
m

e
 (

fo
r 

y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
) 

w
it
h

 p
ri

z
e

s
. 

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
e

n
e

rg
y
 a

n
d

 
w

a
te

r 
u

s
e

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
s
it
e

 v
is

it
s
 a

n
d

 a
 p

la
y
 p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

F
o

r 
o

ld
e

r 
p

u
p

ils
 w

e
 w

ill
 b

u
ild

 o
n

 o
u

r 
e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

d
e

v
is

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

D
ip

lo
m

a
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o
ls

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 
p

ilo
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
d

a
n

g
e

rs
 o

f 
b
u

ild
in

g
 s

it
e

s
. 

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
 v

is
it
s
 t

o
 s

e
e

 s
it
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
 

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
 v

is
it
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 d

a
y
s
 o

n
 s

it
e

, 
s
p

o
n

s
o

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 s
u

p
p

ly
 

c
h

a
in

 t
o

 s
a
m

p
le

 c
ra

ft
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
ri

c
k
la

y
in

g
, 
p

lu
m

b
in

g
, 

e
le

c
tr

ic
s
 e

tc
, 

 
A

 w
o

rk
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

s
it
e

 o
ff

ic
e
 

 
A

 l
in

k
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
 s

c
h
e

m
e

 

Page 88



F
in

a
n

c
ia

ls
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

3
1
 

L
e

g
a

ls
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 l
e

g
a

l 
a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

s
 a

 s
a

le
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
. 

O
rb

it
 H

o
m

e
s
 w

ill
 s

im
u

lt
a

n
e

o
u

s
ly

 e
n

te
r 

in
to

 a
 j
o

in
t 

v
e

n
tu

re
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 H
ill

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l,
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 
o

f 
a

 C
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t,
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 p
ri

v
a

te
 

fo
r 

s
a

le
 h

o
u
s
e

s
. 
 

O
rb

it
 H

o
m

e
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 o
b

lig
a

te
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
a

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 s

e
c
u

re
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 
H

ill
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

b
y
 O

rb
it
 u

n
d

e
r 

a
 s

in
g

le
 J

C
T

 B
u

ild
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t,

 t
o

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e

 w
h

o
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 p

ri
v
a

te
 h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

in
 

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 
 

E
a

c
h

 p
a

rt
y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 r
e

s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 l
e

g
a

l 
a

d
v
is

e
rs

 h
a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 f
o

rm
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t,

 a
n

d
 

a
ll 

le
g

a
l 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

n
g

ro
s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e
a

d
y
 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 l
e

g
a

l 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

. 
 

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 

A
s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

, 
th

e
 r

is
k
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 

re
g

is
te

r 
a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
re

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
th

e
y
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 3
rd

 p
a

rt
y
 a

p
p

ro
v
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
, 

a
n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 s
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e

 i
n

 
a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

h
a

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

 

Page 89



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
L

e
g

a
ls

3
2

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

Page 90



L
e
g

a
ls

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

3
3
 

K
e

n
t 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 M

a
rk

e
t 

2
0

0
9

 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 n
o

 d
ra

m
a

tr
ic

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
m

a
rk

e
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

re
v
ie

w
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

. 
T

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
is

 s
ti
ll 

la
rg

e
ly

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 b

y
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 

le
n

d
in

g
, 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 b

o
th

 h
o

u
s
e

 b
u

y
e

rs
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 
a

lik
e

. 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 s
ta

b
lis

e
d
, 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
m

o
rt

g
a

g
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

ls
 b

e
in

g
 f

a
ir

ly
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t.
 T

h
e

 q
u

a
s
h

in
g

 o
f 

H
IP

s
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
e

n
d

o
rs

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t,
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 f

ra
g

ile
, 

c
a

u
s
e

d
 i
n

 
p

a
rt

 b
y
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 c

u
ts

 a
n

d
 u

n
c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 
a

b
o

u
t 

u
n

e
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
le

v
e

ls
. 
 

F
ir

s
t 

ti
m

e
 b

u
y
e

rs
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

n
o

t 
p

ro
m

in
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
p

o
s
it
 s

u
m

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 s
ta

m
p

 
d

u
ty

 r
e

lie
f 

o
n

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 u

p
 t

o
 £

2
5

0
,0

0
0

 h
a

s
 h

e
lp

e
d

. 
N

e
w

 b
u

ild
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 a

re
 o

ft
e

n
 a

c
q

u
ir
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r 

le
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
. 

 

S
o

m
e

 b
u

y
-t

o
-l

e
t 

in
v
e

s
to

rs
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

tu
rn

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
m

a
rk

e
t,

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 w

h
e

re
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 

a
re

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

w
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 s
m

a
lle

r 
d

e
p

o
s
it
s
 a

re
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
G

ro
s
s
 y

ie
ld

s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 f

e
ll 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 4
-6

%
. 

R
e

n
ta

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 h
e

ld
 u

p
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
, 

b
u

t 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
v
a

lu
e
s
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
in

g
. 

H
ig

h
 s

p
e

e
d

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 r

a
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 K

e
n

t 
to

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
, 

S
t 

P
a

n
c
ra

s
 h

a
s
 a

id
e

d
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
d

e
s
ir
a

b
ili

ty
 

o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
, 
b

u
t 

w
it
h

 l
it
tl
e
 e

ff
e

c
t 

o
n

 h
o
u

s
e

 v
a

lu
e

s
, 
a

s
 

y
e

t.
 T

h
e

 s
a

le
s
 r

a
te

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

  
E

b
b

s
fl
e
e

t 
fo

r 
n

e
w

 b
u

ild
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 i
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 s

lo
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 o

rg
in

a
lly

 
a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
, 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 t
im

e
 b

e
in

g
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

v
e

ry
 m

u
c
h

 i
n

 t
h

e
 h

a
n

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 
b

a
n

k
e

rs
 b

u
t 
a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 m

o
re

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

lly
 s

ta
b

le
. 
T

h
e

 
e

v
e

n
ts

 o
f 

2
0

0
8

 m
e

a
n

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 

b
u

y
in

g
 l
o

w
 r

is
k
 s

it
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

m
a

rg
in

 
re

m
a

in
s
 f

o
r 

p
ro

fi
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 
o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
re

v
e

n
u

e
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 s

o
m

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 
a

re
 s

ti
ll 

ta
k
in

g
 a

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 v

ie
w

 o
n

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 s

it
e

s
, 

d
e

m
o

s
tr

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 s
a

le
 o

f 
S

it
ti
n

g
b

o
u
rn

e
 M

ill
 t

o
 

E
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
L

a
n

d
. 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
re

 c
o

m
fo

rt
a

b
le

 
w

it
h

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 o

f 
2

0
 –

 5
0

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
m

a
lle

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 5
 –

 1
5

 d
e

w
lli

n
g

s
, 

b
u

t 
a

p
a
rt

m
e

n
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

in
 K

e
n

t 
a

re
 o

u
t 

o
f 

fa
v
o

u
r.

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 5
0

 –
 6

0
%

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 w
h

ic
h
 

m
e

a
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
m

o
s
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
c
a

s
h

 
e

q
u

it
y
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 m

o
re

 j
o

in
t 

v
e

n
tu

re
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
, 

w
it
h

 l
a

n
d

o
w

n
e

rs
 t

a
k
in

g
 d

e
fe

rr
e

d
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 1

0
6

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

q
u

o
ta

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

te
s
te

d
 b

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

, 
d

u
e

 t
o

 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

.

T
h

e
 H

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 h

a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 
b

ri
n

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
it
e

s
; 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

ro
u

n
d

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
c
u

ts
, 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 f

a
ile

d
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
K

ic
k
-S

ta
rt

 f
u
n

d
in

g
. 
 

E
v
e

n
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

s
 (

R
S

L
s
) 

a
re

 s
u

ff
e

ri
n

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

re
 f

a
r 

c
h

o
o

s
ie

r 
a

b
o
u

t 
ta

k
in

g
 o

n
 c

o
n

s
e

n
te

d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
la

rg
e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 e
le

m
e

n
t 

is
 m

a
in

ly
 a

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
. 

W
it
h

o
u

t 
a

n
 

a
n

c
h

o
r 

R
S

L
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
re

 u
n

lik
e

ly
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 h

o
u

s
e

 b
u

y
e

rs
 a

lik
e

 a
re

 c
a

u
ti
o

u
s
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 f

u
tu

re
 a

n
d

 h
o

u
s
e

 v
a

lu
e

 i
n

fl
a
ti
o

n
 

is
 u

in
lik

e
y
 t

o
 a

p
p

e
a

r 
fo

r 
m

a
n

y
 m

o
n

th
s
, 

if
 n

o
t 

y
e

a
rs

. 
 

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 P
ri

c
e

 R
a

n
g

e
 b

y
 L

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 P
ri

c
e

 
R

a
n

g
e

 £
/p

s
f 

2
0

0
9

 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k
s

£
3

0
0

 -
 £

4
5

0
 

T
u

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 W
e

lls
 

£
2

6
5

 -
 £

3
5

5
 

T
o

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 M

a
lli

n
g

 
£

2
5

0
 -

 £
3

4
0

 

C
a

n
te

rb
u

ry
£

2
2

0
 -

 £
2

9
0

 

D
a

rt
fo

rd
£

2
1

5
 -

 £
2

8
5

 

W
h

it
s
ta

b
le

 
£

2
0

5
 -

 £
3

2
0

 

M
a

id
s
to

n
e

£
2

0
0

 -
 £

2
6

5
 

G
ra

v
e

s
h

a
m

 
£

1
8

5
 -

 £
2

7
5

 

M
e

d
w

a
y
 

£
1

5
5

 -
 £

3
0

0
 

A
s
h

fo
rd

£
1

5
0

 -
 £

2
3

0
 

S
w

a
le

£
1

5
0

 -
 £

2
2

5
 

R
a

m
s
g

a
te

 
£

1
5

0
 -

 £
2

2
0

 

S
h

e
e

rn
e

s
s

£
1

5
0

 -
 £

2
0

0
 

D
o

v
e

r
£

1
5

0
 -

 £
1

9
0

 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

C
lu

tt
o

n
s

 L
L

P
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 c
a

p
a

b
il

it
y

 
T

h
e

 O
rb

it
 G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 a

 l
o
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
tr

a
c
k
 

re
c
o

rd
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s
, 

a
n

d
 s

e
t 

u
p

 O
rb

it
 

H
o

m
e

s
 (

2
0

2
0

) 
L

td
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

 t
h

is
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 

a
n

d
 e

x
te

n
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
ri

v
a

te
 s

a
le

 h
o

m
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
p

. 

A
s
 a

 1
0

0
%

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 

O
rb

it
 G

ro
u

p
 L

td
, 

O
rb

it
 

H
o

m
e

s
 (

2
0

2
0

) 
L

td
 h

a
s
 t

h
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 O

rb
it
 G

ro
u

p
, 

w
h

ic
h

 c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y
 h

a
s
 l
o

a
n

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 o

f 
£

7
0

0
m

, 
if
 w

h
ic

h
 

£
1

2
0

m
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 d

ra
w

 d
o

w
n

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

 t
o

 f
in

d
 t

h
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
. 

 

O
rb

it
 G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 i
ts

 f
u

n
d
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
a

 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

it
s
 l
o

a
n

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 c

a
n

 a
ls

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 
a

v
a

ila
b

e
le

 f
o

r 
O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

h
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

o
u

tr
ig

h
t 

s
a

le
.

S
o

u
rc

e
s

 o
f 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 
O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 

£
8

4
0

,0
0

0
 o

f 
g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 H
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
 

a
n

d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 1
2

 h
o
u

s
e

s
 f

o
r 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 

n
e

e
d

s
 r

e
n

ti
n
g

 a
n

d
 8

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
b

u
ild

 h
o

m
e

b
u

y
. 

L
a
n

d
 S

a
le

 P
ri

c
e
 

T
h

e
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 p
ri

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a

n
d

 t
o

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

 4
0

 n
e

w
 

h
o

m
e

s
 a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 K
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 

£
2

,2
0

0
,0

0
0

.

C
o

s
t 

P
la

n
/ 

C
o

s
t 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
D

e
m

o
li

ti
o

n
 

S
e

t 
o

u
t 

b
e

lo
w

 i
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 
fo

r 
d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

. 
 T

h
is

 
c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
:-

 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 s

o
ft

 s
tr

ip
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
o

lit
io

n
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 f

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 
R

e
m

o
v
a

l 
o

f 
a

s
b

e
s
to

s
 a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

 
N

e
w

 d
ra

in
a

g
e

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

d
ja

c
e
n

t 
A

T
C

 
h

u
t.

 
D

is
c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 
R

e
in

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
to

p
 s

o
il 

a
n

d
 s

u
b

 s
o

il 
a

n
d

 
g

ra
s
s
 s

e
e

d
in

g
. 

 
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

o
f 

J
a

p
a

n
e

s
e

 K
n

o
tw

e
e

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
e

n
tr

a
n

c
e
 o

v
e

r 
2

4
 m

o
n

th
 

p
e

ri
o

d
.

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
re

c
e

n
t 

c
o

n
v
e

rs
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

e
 a

re
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 

fi
n

a
l 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

n
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

k
e

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 r
e
g

a
rd

 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e

 m
e

c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
a

n
d

 e
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
ra

w
n

 u
p

 
fo

r 
y
o

u
. 

 T
h

e
s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

, 
a

n
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

c
o

s
t,

 a
re

 s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 K
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

. 

O
u

r 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

fi
g

u
re

 i
s
 £

2
,4

8
0

,0
0

0
. 

T
h

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 p
ri

c
e

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 u
p

o
n

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
:

C
a

lf
o

rd
s
e

a
d

e
n

 A
rc

h
it
e

c
t 
D

ra
w

in
g

s
:-

 

K
0

9
_

0
5

3
4

-1
0

0
 R

e
v
 J

, 
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 S

it
e

 P
la

n
 

K
0

9
_

0
5

3
4

-1
0

1
 R

e
v
 B

, 
O

S
 M

a
p

 

K
0

9
_

0
5

3
4

-2
0

3
 R

e
v
 F

, 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 –
 

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
s

K
0

9
_

0
5

3
4

-2
0

4
 R

e
v
 S

, 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 –
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
A

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

K
0

9
_

0
5

3
4

-2
0

5
 R

e
v
 B

, 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

  
- 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 

K
ir

k
s
a

u
n

d
e

rs
 E

n
g

in
e

e
r 

D
ra

w
in

g
s
:-

 

4
5

7
4

-S
K

-H
0

1
 

4
5

7
4

-S
K

-H
0

1
 A

 

4
5

7
4

-S
K

-H
0

2
 

4
5

7
4

-S
K

-H
0

3
 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 

S
ta

n
c
h

io
n

 S
c
h

e
d

u
le

 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

S
c
h

e
d

u
le

 

K
C

C
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

r’
s
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 2

 (
a

s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 

b
y
 P

G
 0

3
/1

2
/2

0
1

0
) 

K
C

C
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 (
a

s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 P

G
 

0
3

/1
2

/2
0

1
0

)

D
o

o
r 

S
c
h

e
d

u
le

 R
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
a

s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 P

G
 

0
9

/1
2

/2
0

1
0

)

H
P

L
 M

e
c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
&

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
O

u
tl
in

e
 D

ra
ft

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 S
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
  

R
e

v
 B

  

H
P

L
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r’
s
 P

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 (

a
s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 1

4
/1

2
/2

0
1

0
) 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
s
e

n
t 

D
o

c
u
m

e
n

t 
S

E
/1

0
/0

1
7

3
5

/F
U

L
 

N
B

 -
 A

ll
 o

th
e

r 
d

o
c

u
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s

ly
 i

s
s

u
e

d
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
p

e
rs

e
d

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 a
b

o
v

e
 a

n
d

 n
o

 

lo
n

g
e

r 
fo

rm
s

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l.

 

Page 91



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 C
a

s
e

 S
tu

d
ie

s
 

3
4

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

E
ll

in
g

to
n

O
rb

it
 G

ro
u

p
 a

c
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

E
lli

n
g

to
n

 G
ir

l’s
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 2
0
0

8
. 

T
h

e
 G

ro
u

p
 f

ir
s
t 

e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

in
 

th
e

 s
it
e

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
 w

h
e

n
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

p
u

t 
it
 u

p
 f

o
r 

s
a

le
. 

T
h

e
 b

id
 c

a
m

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
v
e

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

b
u

t 
O

rb
it
 w

a
s
 i
n

v
it
e

d
 a

s
 t

h
e

 
s
e

c
o

n
d

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

b
id

d
e

r 
in

 M
a

rc
h

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 w

in
n

in
g

 
b

id
d

e
r 

fa
ile

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 a
c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 t

im
e

. 
O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h

e
 a

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 

in
 r

e
c
o

rd
 t

im
e

, 
w

it
h

in
 2

5
 d

a
y
s
! 

O
rb

it
’s

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

 i
s
 i
n

s
p
ir

e
d
 b

y
 i
ts

 v
is

io
n
 t

o
 

b
u

ild
 b

ri
g

h
te

r 
fu

tu
re

s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 v
e

ry
 h

ig
h

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 
R

a
m

s
g

a
te

 w
it
h

 a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 4

6
0

0
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

re
g

is
te

re
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t,
 a

n
d

 s
o

 a
s
 t

h
e

 l
e

a
d

 
p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
n

 T
h

a
n

e
t,

 O
rb

it
 H

o
m

e
s
 

s
a

w
 g

re
a

t 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 l
o

c
a

l 
n

e
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 a

im
 w

a
s
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
 s

c
h
e

m
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

lly
 v

ia
b

le
 f

o
r 

O
rb

it
 a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

 a
 g

o
o

d
 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

E
lli

n
g

to
n

 f
u

lf
ils

 t
h

e
 l
a

tt
e

r,
 w

it
h

 
g

o
o

d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

m
e

n
it
ie

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 
E

lli
n

g
to

n
 P

a
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 A

2
5

5
 a

n
d

 R
a

m
s
g

a
te

 T
ra

in
 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 w

a
lk

in
g

 d
is

ta
n

c
e

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 t
o
w

n
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 n

e
a

rb
y
. 

 

O
u

r 
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 b
ri

g
h

te
r 

fu
tu

re
s
 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i
s
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 E

lli
n

g
to

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 

d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 b
y
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 h

o
m

e
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
a

n
t 

to
 l
iv

e
 i
n

, 
w

it
h

in
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 b
e

 p
a

rt
 o

f.
 T

h
e

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 u

p
 o

f 
2

8
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 (

1
6

 f
la

ts
 

(4
x
1

-b
e

d
 a

n
d

 1
2

x
2

-b
e

d
) 

a
n

d
 1

2
 h

o
u
s
e

s
 (

4
x
2

-b
e

d
, 

6
x
3

-b
e

d
 a

n
d

 2
x
4

-b
e

d
))

 f
o

r 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 r
e

n
t,

 w
it
h

 a
 

G
P

’s
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 o
n

 s
it
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
a

rk
in

g
 f

o
r 

b
o

th
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
. 
 

T
h

e
 1

 a
n

d
 2

-b
e

d
ro

o
m

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 o

ff
e
r 

th
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 

fo
r 

a
 g

o
o

d
 m

ix
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
s
m

a
lle

r 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 3

 
a

n
d

 4
-b

e
d

ro
o

m
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 f

o
r 

la
rg

e
r,

 o
ld

e
r 

fa
m

ili
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 m
ix

 o
f 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 a

ls
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
tu

rn
o

v
e

r 
o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 i
s
 l
o

w
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 f
o

r 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 d

o
w

n
s
iz

e
 o

r 
u

p
g

ra
d

e
 t

h
e

ir
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

n
e

e
d

s
. 

T
h

is
 c

re
a

te
s
 a

 t
ru

ly
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

T
h

e
 s

it
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
e

ff
e

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 b
u

t 
w

ill
 n

e
a

tl
y
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
, 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

s
 –

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 f
e

w
 g

re
e

n
 o

p
e

n
 

s
p

a
c
e

s
 a

 f
e
w

 m
in

u
te

s
 w

a
lk

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

. 
 

V
ic

to
ri

a
 V

il
la

In
 2

0
0

3
, 

K
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
d

 O
rb

it
 

S
o

u
th

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
, 

(t
h

e
n

 T
C

H
A

) 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
a

n
 e

x
tr

a
 c

a
re

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
a

n
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
a

re
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

 o
f 

th
e

 o
ld

 
V

ic
to

ri
a

 H
o

u
s
e

. 
O

rb
it
 s

a
w

 t
h

is
 a

s
 a

n
 e

x
c
it
in

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 T
h
a

n
e

t 
a

n
d

 w
a

s
 

p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 d
ri

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
 

T
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

ta
s
k
 w

a
s
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 b

ri
n

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 
k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 c

ru
c
ia

l 
to

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 a

n
d

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 T
h

is
 r

e
s
u
lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
k
e

s
h
o

ld
e

rs
 g

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
. 

T
h

e
 g

ro
u

p
, 

c
h
a

ir
e

d
 b

y
 O

rb
it
 H

o
m

e
s
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 h

ig
h

 
le

v
e

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

o
lic

y
 l
e

a
d

s
 a

t 
K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 K
e
n

t 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

T
h

a
n
e

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 H
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 

a
n

d
 O

rb
it
 S

o
u

th
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

. 
 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 4

0
-b

e
d

 e
x
tr

a
 c

a
re

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 w

a
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

, 
w

it
h

 a
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
o

f 
£

4
.5

m
 a

n
d

 
b

o
a

s
ts

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 r
a

ti
n

g
s
, 
s
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rt
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

a
s
s
is

ti
v
e

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 a

n
d

 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

e
d

 c
a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

T
h
e

 
p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a

s
 s

h
o

rt
lis

te
d
 f
o

r 
tw

o
 a

w
a

rd
s
. 

Page 92



C
a

s
e

 S
tu

d
ie

s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

3
5
 

D
e

li
v

e
ri

n
g

 M
ix

e
d

 U
s

e
 

S
c

h
e

m
e

s
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l,
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 S

p
a

c
e

s
T

h
e

 H
ill

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 h

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 a
n

 e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
re

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
p

re
d

o
m

in
a

n
tl
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

lly
-l

e
d

, 
b

u
t 

o
ft

e
n

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l,
 e

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l,
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

p
a

c
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 o

n
e

 e
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 i
s
 t
h

e
 

re
c
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 h
e

a
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

g
ro

u
p

 a
t 

W
a

lt
h

a
m

 A
b

b
e

y
, 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 w

it
h

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

d
e

s
ig

n
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 a

n
 o

ld
 V

ic
to

ri
a

n
 i
n

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
b

u
ild

in
g

 
b

a
c
k
 t

o
 l
if
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 a
 l
o

v
e

ly
 s

e
tt

in
g

 i
n

 L
e

a
 

V
a

lle
y
.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 

re
fu

rb
is

h
e

d
 t
h

e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
w

a
te

r 
to

w
e

r 
a

n
d

 p
o

w
e

r 
h

o
u

s
e

. 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 t
o

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
e

 p
ro

x
im

it
y
 o

f 
a

n
 

S
S

I 
a

n
d

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

o
u

r 
o
w

n
 

s
it
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 r
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

t 
b

a
d

g
e

r 
s
e

tt
, 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 d
ra

g
o

n
fl
y
 c

o
rr

id
o

r,
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 O

ld
 R

iv
e

r 
L

e
e

. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

h
e

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 h

a
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

o
la

r 
th

e
rm

a
l 
w

a
te

r 
h

e
a

ti
n

g
, 

p
h

o
to

v
o

lt
a

ic
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
, 

g
re

e
n

 r
o
o

f 
o

n
 

n
e

w
 b

u
ild

 r
o

o
f 

a
n

d
 a

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
in

d
 t

u
rb

in
e

. 

S
a

x
o

n
g

a
te

, 
a

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 G

o
ld

 a
w

a
rd

 
w

in
n

in
g

 p
ro

je
c
t,

 i
s
 a

 m
ix

e
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l/
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l/
 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 f
o

r 
th

e
 P

a
p

w
o

rt
h

 T
ru

s
t 

a
n

d
 

H
ill

 R
e

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l,
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

m
in

e
n

t 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 s

it
e

 i
n

 
H

u
n

ti
n

g
d

o
n

. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
h

a
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
u

n
iq

u
e

 
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 c
a
re

fu
l 
a

n
d

 s
e
n

s
it
iv

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

b
u

t,
 a

t 
it
s
 h

e
a

rt
, 

it
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 a
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
b

o
u

t 
c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

w
h

e
re

 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
o

u
ld

 w
a

n
t 

to
 l
iv

e
, 

le
a

rn
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
. 

T
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e

s
 t
w

o
 m

a
in

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

, 
th

e
 

S
a

x
o

n
g

a
te

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 a

 m
ix

e
d

 
te

n
u

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 B
ra

d
b

u
ry

 P
la

c
e

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 

fo
r 

s
a

le
 u

n
it
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 c
ro

s
s
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 c
e

n
tr

e
. 
A

 
to

ta
l 
o

f 
3

0
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 w

e
re

 c
re

a
te

d
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

tw
o

 s
to

re
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 c
e

n
tr

e
. 

O
th

e
r 

m
ix

e
d

 u
s
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 f
a

n
ta

s
ti
c
 n

e
w

 l
ib

ra
ry

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 f
o

r 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
s

h
ir

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 a
t 

G
re

a
t 

S
h

e
lf

o
rd

, 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 b
p

h
a

. 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

S
ir

 P
e

te
r 

B
ro

w
n

, 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

s
a

id
 a

t 
th

e
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

o
p

e
n

in
g

: 
“L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

re
 m

u
c
h

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 j
u

s
t 

p
la

c
e

s
 t

o
 

g
e

t 
b

o
o

k
s
 f

ro
m

. 
T

h
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
t 

th
e

 h
u

b
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
e

a
l 
to

 a
ll 

a
g

e
s
. 

I 
a

m
 r

e
a

lly
 p

le
a

s
e

d
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

d
d

e
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
k
e

y
w

o
rk

e
r 

fl
a

ts
, 

it
 i
s
 a

 r
e
a

l 
a

s
s
e

t 
to

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 h
a
d

 m
a

n
y
 f

a
v
o

u
ra

b
le

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 n

e
w

 l
ib

ra
ry

, 
it
 i
s
 a

 
v
e

ry
 f

in
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 b
le

n
d

s
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
.”

T
h

is
 s

m
a

ll 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
in

g
 s

h
o

rt
 l
is

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

 
w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

b
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 

a
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
 a

n
 H

C
A

 G
o

ld
 a

w
a

rd
 f

in
a

lis
t 
in

 t
w

o
 

c
a

te
g

o
ri

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 v

il
la

g
e

 h
a

ll
 i

n
C

o
c

k
e

rn
h

o
e

, 
L

u
to

n
 w

a
s
 

n
o

t 
s
a

fe
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 h

a
d

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
s
c
h

e
d
u

le
d

 
a

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
p

u
t 

o
n

 h
o

ld
, 
a

 n
e

w
 v

ill
a

g
e

 h
a

ll 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
3

4
 n

e
w

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 
n

e
w

 v
ill

a
g

e
 h

a
ll 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
n

 e
s
ta

te
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o

r 
N

o
rt

h
 H

e
rt

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 H
o

m
e

 

T
h

e
 n

e
w

 h
a

ll 
w

a
s
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 o
p

e
n

e
d

 o
n

 3
0

th
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

0
 

a
n

d
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 b

o
o

k
in

g
s
 w

a
s
 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 

Page 93



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 C
a

s
e

 S
tu

d
ie

s
 

3
6

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 U
n

it
in

g
 E

d
e

n
b

ri
d

g
e

 -
 D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
e

d
le

y
 C

o
u

rt
, 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e
 -

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

5
0

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 u

n
it
s
 i
n

 3
0

 c
lu

s
te

r 
fl
a

ts
 u

s
in

g
 l
ig

h
tw

e
ig

h
t 

s
te

e
l 
fr

a
m

in
g

, 
a

b
o

v
e

 n
e

w
 t

e
a

c
h

in
g

/ 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
n

u
rs

e
ry

 s
p

a
c
e

 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
n

c
ill

a
ry

 w
o

rk
s
 f

o
r 

C
A

M
C

A
T

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
A

ld
w

y
c
k
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
. 

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

s
u

m
 £

5
.6

m
, 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 7

5
 

w
e

e
k
s
.

H
ill

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
u
n

d
e

r 
a

 J
C

T
 9

8
 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
it
 a

 p
a

rt
n

e
ri
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 t

h
e

 
d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

 o
f 

a
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

 p
ri

v
a

te
 

d
a

y
 n

u
rs

e
ry

, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 r

o
o

m
s
, 

s
ta

ff
 f

la
t 

a
n

d
 1

5
0

 e
n

s
u

it
e

 b
e

d
s
p

a
c
e

s
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 i
n

 a
 t

h
re

e
/ 

fo
u

r 
s
to

re
y
 h

ig
h

 
b

lo
c
k
.

T
h

e
 s

it
e

 w
a
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
e

d
 v

ia
 a

 n
a

rr
o

w
 1

0
0

m
 l
o

n
g

 l
a

n
e

 j
u

s
t 

o
v
e

r 
th

re
e

 
m

e
tr

e
s
 w

id
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
rv

e
d

 m
a

n
y
 g

a
ra

g
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

V
ic

to
ri
a

n
 

te
rr

a
c
e

d
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 s
e

v
e

ra
l 
o

th
e

r 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
. 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

e
re

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 k
e

y
 i
s
s
u
e

s
. 

W
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
d

 t
h

is
 b

y
 

c
o

n
ta

c
ti
n

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n

it
ia

lly
 v

ia
 a

 l
e

tt
e

r 
d

ro
p

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 v
e

ry
 

c
lo

s
e

 c
o
n

ta
c
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
m

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

k
e

e
p

in
g

 t
h

e
m

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
, 

h
o

w
 w

e
 w

e
re

 
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e
 w

e
re

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 
d

e
liv

e
ri

e
s
 a

lo
n

g
 a

 s
h

a
re

d
 n

a
rr

o
w

 p
ri

v
a

te
 l
a

n
e

. 
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

lly
 a

ll 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
d

e
liv

e
ri

e
s
 w

e
re

 o
n

 “
ri

g
id

” 
lo

rr
ie

s
. 

T
h
e

s
e

 a
re

 
s
m

a
lle

r 
th

a
n

 a
rt

ic
u

la
te

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 a

n
d
 h

e
n

c
e

 a
re

 e
a

s
ie

r 
to

 m
a

n
o

e
u

v
re

, 
ta

k
e

 u
p

 l
e

s
s
 r

o
o

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

u
s
 w

e
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 g

a
in

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 
s
it
e

 e
a

s
ie

r.
 T

h
is

 a
s
s
is

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
ra

ff
ic

 f
lo

w
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
s
it
e

 w
o

rk
s
 o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
. 

W
e

 a
ls

o
 t

o
o
k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 i
s
s
u

e
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
. 

W
e

 h
a

d
 a

 s
tr

ic
t 

c
lie

n
t 

d
ri

v
e

n
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
 t

o
 a

d
h

e
re

 t
o

 i
n

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 h

a
d

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e
a

d
y
 t

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

u
tu

m
n

 2
0

0
5

 
te

rm
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 d

a
te

 c
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 m

is
s
e

d
. 

S
p

e
e

d
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

u
ra

b
ili

ty
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 e

n
d

 u
s
e

r 
g

ro
u

p
 w

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

s
s
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h

 w
e

ig
h

in
g

 u
p

 a
ll 

th
e

 
is

s
u

e
s
, 

w
e

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 a
 l
ig

h
t 

s
te

e
l 
fr

a
m

e
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
 p

re
-f

a
b

ri
c
a

te
d

 
b

a
th

ro
o

m
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 

s
u

p
p

ly
 c

h
a

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 f
re

e
z
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
s
 

a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
c
h

o
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
in

is
h

e
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 o

ff
-s

it
e

 
m

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
 d

a
te

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o

 t
o

o
k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

y
o

u
ts

 a
n

d
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 a

s
 m

u
c
h

 r
e

p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 a

s
 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 s
p

e
e

d
 u

p
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 b

y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

le
a

rn
in

g
 c

u
rv

e
s
. 

T
h

is
 a

ls
o

 s
h

o
u

ld
 g

re
a

tl
y
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
 c

lie
n

t 
w

it
h

 b
u

ild
in

g
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 a
s
 t

h
e

 s
a
m

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
s
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 

b
u

ild
in

g
 w

h
e
re

v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

  
 

In
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
d

is
ru

p
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 l
ig

h
t 
s
te

e
l 
fr

a
m

e
 w

h
e

n
 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 a

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fo

rm
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 n

a
m

e
ly

 b
ri

c
k
 a

n
d

 b
lo

c
k
, 

h
a

s
 f

e
w

e
r 

d
e

liv
e

ri
e

s
 t

o
 s

it
e

 a
n

d
 h

e
n

c
e

 h
a

d
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

b
e

n
e

fi
t.
 

T
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 g
a

in
 w

a
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

e
d
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 f

a
s
te

r 
a

n
d

 f
a

r 
m

o
re

 p
re

d
ic

ta
b

le
 e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
n

 w
e

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

ld
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

th
u

s
 m

e
a

n
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 w

e
re

 o
n

 s
it
e

 f
o

r 
a

 s
h
o

rt
e

r 
p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

ti
m

e
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 a
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fo

rm
 o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g

 m
e

th
o

d
. 

T
h

is
 s

h
o

rt
e

r 
p

e
ri

o
d

 e
n

a
b

le
d

 u
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 o

n
 

ti
m

e
 a

n
d

 i
t 

a
ls

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 t
h

e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rs

. 
 

In
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

te
rm

s
 w

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
ix

ty
 f

iv
e

 w
e

e
k
s
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 b

u
ilt

 n
e

a
rl

y
 4

5
0

0
 s

q
u

a
re

 m
e

tr
e

s
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

n
u

rs
e

ry
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

C
a

s
tl

e
d

in
e

 R
o

a
d

, 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 -

 d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

2
 n

e
w

 t
w

o
 

b
e

d
ro

o
m

 f
la

ts
, 

1
 t

h
re

e
 b

e
d

ro
o

m
 h

o
u

s
e

, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 M

U
G

A
 

s
p

o
rt

s
 s

u
rf

a
c
e

 a
t 

C
a

s
tl
e
d

in
e

 R
o

a
d

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 f
o
r 

A
ff

in
it
y
 S

u
tt

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 
p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a

s
 a

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

£
2

.6
 m

ill
io

n
, 

is
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 i
n

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 
w

ill
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 C

o
d

e
 f

o
r 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 H
o

m
e

s
 L

e
v
e

l 
3

. 
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
0

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
w

o
rk

s
 a

re
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll.

  
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

w
o

 b
lo

c
k
s
 o

f 
te

n
 a

n
d

 t
w

e
lv

e
 f

la
ts

 a
n

d
 

o
n

e
 h

o
u

s
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

. 
F

o
u

r 
o

f 
th

e
 u

n
it
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
, 
3

 w
it
h

 f
u

ll 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 o
n

e
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
ia

lly
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
B

ro
m

le
y
’s

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

O
n

c
e

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 

w
e

 w
ill

 t
a

ilo
r 

th
e

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
’ 
n

e
e

d
s
. 

G
re

e
n

 c
re

d
e

n
ti
a

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e
 h

o
m

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 p
h

o
to

 v
o

lt
a

ic
 p

a
n

e
ls

, 
h

ig
h

 
in

s
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
 S

U
D

 s
y
s
te

m
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 c
o

d
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
3

. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 v
e

ry
 t

ig
h

t 
s
it
e

 w
it
h

 s
o

m
e

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
 v

e
h

ic
u

la
r 

a
c
c
e

s
s
. 
T

h
e

 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 i
s
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 a

n
y
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

re
a

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 i
s
 l
o

c
a

te
d

. 

In
 t

h
e

 e
a

rl
y
 p

h
a

s
e

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

m
o

lis
h

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 
a

n
d

 a
re

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
n

g
 a

 n
e

w
 b

u
ild

in
g

 w
it
h

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

 b
y
 u

p
 t

o
 8

0
 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

. 
W

e
 a

re
 s

o
u

n
d

 p
ro

o
fi
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
  

W
e

 r
e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
 m

u
lt
i-

u
s
e

 g
a

m
e

s
 a

re
a

 
(M

U
G

A
) 

s
p

o
rt

s
 s

u
rf

a
c
e

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o
l 
h

o
lid

a
y
s
, 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

0
, 

fo
r 

a
ll 

th
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 e

n
jo

y
. 

T
h

e
 n

e
w

 M
U

G
A

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

fi
v
e

 a
s
id

e
 f

o
o

tb
a

ll 
a

n
d

 b
a

s
k
e

tb
a

ll 
e

tc
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 b

a
n

k
e

d
 s

id
e
s
 

to
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 f
u

ll 
s
p

e
c
ta

to
rs

h
ip

. 
 

W
e

 h
e

ld
 a

n
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 c

e
re

m
o

n
y
 e

v
e

n
t 

to
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
e

w
 M

U
G

A
 w

it
h

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 C

ry
s
ta

l 
P

a
la

c
e

 f
o

o
tb

a
ll 

c
lu

b
, 
a

 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 b

a
rb

e
q

u
e

 a
n

d
 b

a
s
k
e

tb
a

ll 
a

n
d
 f

o
o

tb
a

ll 
to

u
rn

a
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 H

ild
a

 
L

a
n

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

p
e

n
e
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 M
U

G
A

. 

T
h

e
 n

e
w

 m
u

lt
i-

u
s
e

 g
a

m
e

s
 a

re
a

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
-

m
o

d
e

lli
n

g
 a

n
d

 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 w
ill

 a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 k
e

y
 d

ri
v
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
. 

 

Page 94



Page 95



T
h

e
 P

o
w

e
r 

H
o

u
s
e

G
u

n
p

o
w

d
e

r 
M

il
l

P
o

w
d

e
rm

il
l 

L
a

n
e

W
a

lt
h

a
m

 A
b

b
e

y

E
s
s
e

x
  
E

N
9

 1
B

N

P
h

o
n

e
: 

0
2

0
 8

5
2

7
 1

4
0

0

F
a

x
: 

0
2

0
 8

5
0

1
 8

7
7

0

W
e

b
: 

w
w

w
.h

il
lp

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
.c

o
.u

k

S
e

c
o

n
d

 F
lo

o
r 

H
o

ri
zo

n
 H

o
u

s
e

E
c
li

p
s
e

 P
a

rk

S
it

ti
n

g
b

o
u

rn
e

 R
o

a
d

M
a

id
s
to

n
e

K
e

n
t 

M
E

1
4

 3
E

N

P
h

o
n

e
: 

0
1

6
2

2
 6

3
3

 2
2

0

Page 96


	Agenda
	D1 Edenbridge Community Centre
	Record of Decision - Sale of Freehold Land Comprising Part of the Former Eden Valley Secondary School Site
	Summary - Sale of Freehold Land Comprising Part of the Former Eden Valley Secondary School Site
	Record of Decision - Contract for the Construction of the Edenbridge Community Centre
	Record of Decision - Grant of a Long Lease at the Edenbridge Baptist Church and Outline Occupational Terms at the New Edenbridge Community Centre
	Governance Structure for the Edenbridge Project
	Legal Framework for the Edenbridge Project
	Public Consultation Feedback Form
	Public Consultation - Questions and Answers
	The Section 106 Agreement and the Deed of Variation
	Layout of the Community Centre (architectural drawing)
	Community Centre General Sections (architectural drawing)
	Community Centre Elevations (architectural drawing)
	Community Centre Site Sections, Showing Former Planning Approval (architectural drawing)
	Proposal for a Solar Electric Array at the Community Centre
	Uniting Edenbridge: Delivering new resources at the heart of the community


